
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	

Entry 1 School Information and Cover Page 

(New schools that were not open for instruction for 

the 2018-19 school year are not required to complete 

or submit an annual report this year). 
Last updated: 08/05/2019 

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of the 

other tasks assigned to you by your authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this cover 
page task, please ensure that you select the correct authorizer (as of June 30, 2019) or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

BASIC INFORMATION 

a. SCHOOL NAME 

(Select name from the drop down menu) 

a1. Popular School Name 

(Optional) 

b. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of 
June 30th, 2019) 

Please select the correct authorizer as of 
June 30, 2019 or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

c. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION 

d. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER 

e. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR 

INSTRUCTION 

SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

South Bronx Community 

Regents Authorized Charter School 

NYC CSD 7 

11/2015 

08/2016 
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f. APPROVED SCHOOL MISSION (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized 

schools only) 

MISSION STATEMENT 

The mission of South Bronx Community Charter High School is to promote student excellence through an 

emphasis on academic, interpersonal and professional skills in a supportive and responsive learning 

environment. SBCCHS students graduate with a positive sense of self, ready to design and realize their 
futures in college, community, and career. 

g. KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools 

only) 
KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Brief heading followed by a description of each Key Design Elements 

(KDE). KDEs are those general aspects of the school that are innovative or unique to the school’s 

mission and goals, are core to the school’s overall design, and are critical to its success. The 

design elements may include a specific content area focus; unique student populations to be 

served; specific educational programs or pedagogical approaches; unique calendar, schedule, or 
configurations of students and staff; and/or innovative organizational structures and systems. 

Variable 1 Competency Based Education
South Bronx Community Charter High School is competency
based. Our instructional model is wholly organized around
helping students to learn, practice, and demonstrate
mastery of 19 competencies that are aligned to the New York
State Learning Standards, inclusive of the Common Core
State Standards, and derived to help students master the
skills and knowledge necessary to pass requisite exams,
graduate from high school, and complete at least two years
of college and/or a career internship of their choice. Each
competency is an aggregate of smaller skills called
attainments. It is important to note that our competencies
and attainments consist of both academic and social 
emotional learning targets. 

Variable 2 Culturally Responsive Education
South Bronx Community Charter High School practices
cultural responsiveness. Cultural Responsiveness. We believe
that it is important to honor student identity. We believe that
strong relationships between staff and students are at the
core of an effective learning model. We believe student
empowerment and investment are essential to building
authentic community. We believe learning experiences must
provide a window and mirror for students. Two examples of
cultural responsiveness at work include our Rite of Passage
program for male and female students and our adherence to
restorative practices as it pertains to community building,
repairing harm and reintegrating students. 

Variable 3 Integrated Staffing 

2 / 7 



	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

Variable 4 

Variable 5 

Variable 6 

Variable 7 

Variable 8 

Variable 9 

Variable 10 

Need additional space for 

variables 

h. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL) 

i. TOTAL MAX APPROVED 

ENROLLMENT FOR THE 2018-19 

SCHOOL YEAR (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

j. TOTAL STUDENT ENROLLMENT 

ON JUNE 30, 2019 (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

South Bronx Community Charter High School promotes
supportive staffing through the creation and fulfillment of a
Learning Coach role that works alongside teachers providing
students with individualized support and attending to the
social emotional development of students while cross
training and collaborating with academic colleagues. 

Adaptive Operations
South Bronx Community Charter High School advances
adaptive operations and management. We believe that user
centeredness and co creation are imperative in an authentic
learning organization. We believe that failing forward,
leveraging lessons and manage mistakes, are vital for
success in the 21st century. Therefore, a key aspect of work
involves reflection on practice and performance, sharing of
goals, and timely adjustments that enhance the experience
and effectiveness of our school model. 

(No response) 

(No response) 

(No response) 

(No response) 

(No response) 

(No response) 

No 

http://www.southbronxcommunity.org 

285 

283 
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k. GRADES SERVED IN SCHOOL YEAR 2018-19 (does not include Pre-K program 

students) 
Check all that apply 

Grades Served 9, 10, 11 

l1. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT No 

WITH A CHARTER OR 

EDUCATIONAL MANAGEMENT 

ORGANIZATION? 

FACILITIES INFORMATION 

m. FACILITIES 

Will the school maintain or operate multiple sites in 2019-20? 

No, just one site. 

School Site 1 (Primary) 

m1. SCHOOL SITES 

Please provide information on Site 1 for the upcoming school year. 

Physical Address Phone Number District/CSD Grades to be 
Served at Site 
for coming year
(K 5, 6 9, etc.) 

Receives Rental 
Assistance for 
Which Grades (If
yes, enter the
appropriate
grades. If no,
enter No). 

730 Concourse 
Village West,Site 1 718 292 4115 NYC CSD 7 9 12 No Tower B, Bronx, 
NY 10451 
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m1a. Please provide the contact information for Site 1. 

Name Work Phone Alternate Phone Email Address 

School John Clemente Leader 

Operati
onal Jahdiya Semper 
Leader 

Complia 
nce Jahdiya Semper 
Contact 

Complai 
nt John Clemente 
Contact 

DASA 
Coordin Jahdiya Semper 
ator 

Phone 
Contact 
for After John Clemente Hours 
Emerge
ncies 

m1b. Is site 1 in public (co- Co located Space 

located) space or in private 

space? 

m1c. Please list the terms of your current co-location. 

Date school Is school If so, list year Is school If so, list the School at Full 
will leave working with expansion working with proposed Capacity at
current co NYCDOE to will occur. NYCDOE to space and Site 
location expand into move to year planned

current separate for move 
space? space? 

Site 1 7/2020 No No 7/2020 No 
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IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC 

m1d. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection 

Report for school site 1 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC . 

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO) 

(No response) 

Site 1 Fire Inspection Report 

(No response) 

CHARTER REVISIONS DURING THE 2018-19 SCHOOL YEAR 

n1. Were there any revisions to No 

the school’s charter during the 

2018-19 school year? (Please 

include approved or pending 

material and non-material 
charter revisions). 

ATTESTATION 

o. Individual Primarily Responsible for Submitting the Annual Report. 

Name John Clemente 

Position Co Founder and Executive Director 

Phone/Extension  

Email  

6 / 7 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	

p. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board 

President) below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and 

accurate and that this charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter, 
and with all pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We 

understand that if any information in any part of this report is found to have been 

deliberately misrepresented, that will constitute grounds for the revocation of our 

charter. Check YES if you agree and then use the mouse on your PC or the stylist on 

your mobile device to sign your name). 

Yes 

Signature, Head of Charter School 

Signature, President of the Board of Trustees 

Date 2019/08/05 

Thank you. 
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Entry 2 NYS School Report Card Link 
Last updated: 08/05/2019 

SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

1. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of 
June 30th, 2019) 

(For technical reasons, please re select 
authorizer name from the drop down 

menu). 

2. NEW YORK STATE REPORT 

CARD 

Provide a direct URL or web link 

to the most recent New York 

State School Report Card for the 

charter school (See 

https://reportcards.nysed.gov/). 

(Charter schools completing year 
one will not yet have a School 
Report Card or link to one. Please 

type "URL is not available" in the 

space provided.) 

REGENTS Authorized Charter School 

https://data.nysed.gov/essa.php? 

instid=800000086907&year=2018&createreport=1&allchecke 

d=1&OverallStatus=1&section_1003=1&HSindicators=1&HSel 
p=1&HSchronic=1&staffqual=1&expend=1&regents=1&nyses 

lat=1&feddata=1 

1 / 1 



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	
	

	 	
	 	 	 	

	

	 	
	 	

	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	

	
	

	 	 	

	
	

	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	
	 	 	

	
	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	
	

	
	
	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	
	

	
	
	

	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	
	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	
	 	
	
	

Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals 
Last updated: 08/05/2019 

PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS 

Board of Regents authorized and NYCDOE authorized charter schools only. Complete the tables provided. 
List each goal and measure as contained in the school’s currently approved charter, and indicate whether 
the school has met or not met the goal. Please provide information for all goals by November 1st. 

1. ACADEMIC STUDENT PERFORMANCE GOALS 

If performance data is not available by August 1st, please state this in the last column and update by 

November 1st. 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals 

Academ 
ic Goal 
1 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Academic Student 
Performance Goal 

Four years after
enrollment 85% of 
students will 
demonstrate at least 
a proficient level of
mastery in all 19 
competency areas as
measured by
SBCCHS 
competencies,
attainments and 
performance rubrics. 

By the end of a
cohort’s third year,
75% of students will 
have passed three
Regents exams. 

Measure Used to 
Evaluate Progress
Toward Attainment of 
Goal 

Each of SBC's 19 
competencies
consists of 
attainments. For 
grade promotion,
students are required
to master 80% of all 
course attainments. 
Mastery across all 19
competencies is
expected to occur
over a span of four 
years. 

Passage rates for a
total of at least three 
Regents exams will
initially be calculated
in June 2019. During
the 2018 19 
academic year, 11th
grade students will
have the opportunity
to sit for up to 4 

Goal Met or Not Met 

Met 

Indicate if data is not 
available. If/when
available, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take If Goal Is Not 
Met 

SBC will continue to 
provide students with
opportunities to
encounter and 
master competencies
and attainments 
within and across 
their high school
courses. Staff are 
developing tracking
systems for
determining the
mastery levels
students have 
achieved annually. 

Currently, 76% of
third year students
have met this goal.
53% of third year
students have passed
5 Regents exams 

SBC will administer 
Regents exams
annually and provide
students with 
targeted and 

1 / 9 
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3 

Regents. intensive test support
as needed. 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Academ 
ic Goal 
4 

Academ 
ic Goal 

By the end of a
cohort’s fourth year,
75% of students will 
have demonstrated 
college and career
readiness by passing
five Regents required
for graduation with a
score of at least 75. 

85% of students who 
enter in the 9th 
grade will graduate
within 4 years 

95% of students who 
enter in the 9th 
grade will graduate
within five years. 

Passage rates of five
Regents exams, at a
minimum score of 
75, 
will be calculated in 
June 2020. 

SBC will calculate the 
graduation rate of
students retained 
and enrolled from the 
9th grade. This initial
count will be 
conducted in June 
2020. 

SBC will calculate the 
graduation rate of
students retained 
and enrolled from the 
9th grade. This initial
5 year graduation
count will be 
conducted in June 
2021. 

SBC will administer 
Regents exams
annually and provide
students with 
targeted and
intensive test support
as needed. Currently,
76% of third year
students have passed
3 Regents exams. 

26% of second year
students have passed
3 Regents exam. 

SBC will annually
monitor student 
retention and 
promotion rates and
implement
interventions as 
required to ensure
student progress
towards graduation. 

As of the end of June 
76% of rising seniors
have earned 25 or 
more credits. 

SBC will annually
monitor student 
retention and 
promotion rates and
implement
interventions as 
required to ensure
student progress
towards graduation. 

SBC employs course
recovery and credit
recovery options for
students to earn 
additional credit 
through evening and
Saturday school
programming. 

SBC is improving 

2 / 9 
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Academ 
ic Goal 
6 

Academ 
ic Goal 
7 

All students with SBC uses the IEP 
disabilities will 
achieve their IEP 

goals from each
students' IEP to Met 

goals as determined
by Annual Review 

measure success on 
this goal. 

Each year 90% of
English language
learners will improve
by at least one level
on the New York 
State English as a
Second Language
Achievement Test 
(NYSESLAT). 

Score results for the 
most recent 
academic year will be Not Met 
provided in
November 2019. 

schedules for 
students with IEPs to 
allow for meaningful
small group
instruction and will 
provide more
frequent advisory
check ins. In addition, 
SBC will perform
outreach to the 
families of those 
students who did not 
meet their IEP goals. 

This year, SBC will be
focused on linking
student IEP goals
directly to course
attainments, 
providing more
SETTS support for
students struggling
to develop critical
skills, and promote
executive functioning
skills among special
education students 

5 out of 7 ELL 
students in their 3rd 
year either moved up
one level in their 
performance on the
NYSESLAT or passed
the ELA Regents
exam (which means
the student is no 
longer considered an
English Language
Learner). 

SBC has hired a new 
ELL Coordinator with 
deep experience that
should improve our
ability to support
students in improving
their English
Language proficiency. 

Student files and 
transcripts will reflect
that every student 

3 / 9 



	 	

	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	
	 	

	 	

	

	 	
	
	 	 	

	 	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	
	 	

	 	
	 	
	
	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	
	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	
	 	

	
	 	 	

	 	
	

	
	 	

	

	 	
	 	 	 	
	

	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	
	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	
	

	 	
	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	

	
	 	 	

	

	

	
	 	
	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	

	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	

8 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Academ 
ic Goal 
9 

Academ 
ic Goal 

All students will 
participate in at least
one college level
course or experience,
eg.: College Now,
Advanced Placement 
prior to graduation as
tracked by student
records and 
transcripts. 

Each year, the group
of students who have 
taken the CWRA+ or 
ACT Aspire will
reduce the gap
between their score 
in the previous year,
and the College
Readiness 
Benchmark score by
50%. Students who 
achieve the College
Readiness 
Benchmark Scores 
for their grade will
continue to achieve 
the College
Readiness 
Benchmark on 
subsequent tests and
in subsequent
grades. 

The average PSAT
and SAT/ACT scores
will exceed the state 
average. 

has participated in at
least one college
course or experience
prior to Advanced
Placement 
graduation. 

Staff are initiating
records and 
planning to develop a
well articulated set of 
college
exposure/experience
offerings transcripts. 

Students will reduce 
the gap in their score
from college Met readiness 
benchmarks by 50%
annually. 

The average PSAT
and SAT/ACT scores
will exceed the state 
average. The earliest
scores will be for 
students who test in 
the 10th grade 

Not Met 

More than 30 rising
seniors have already
taken and passed
college course
through Touro College
and Hostos College.
SBC will implement
AP offerings
for Literature and 
pilot the AP Capstone
course in the first 
year of the program. 

Ninth grade students
took the CWRA in fall 
2016 for baseline 
scores and were 
retested in the Spring
2018 at the 
conclusion of their 
sophomore year.
Students scored 117 
points higher on
average. Average
growth over 4 years
across all schools 
administering the
exam is 77 points.
SBC students 
demonstrated 
significant growth. 

SBC prepares for
students to take the 
PSAT in the 10th and 
11th grade and
SAT/ACT in 11th and
12th. 

95 11th grade
students took the SAT 
in March. The 
average total score
was 866. The state 
average was 959. 

SBC is providing 
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during the 2017 18
academic year. 

more robust supports
for students to 
improve their math
performance on the
SAT exam. Our 
students ELA and 
Writing scores were
approaching the 
state average. 

2. Do have more academic goals 

to add? 

Yes 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals 

Academic Student 
Performance Goal 

Measure Used to 
Evaluate Progress
Toward Attainment of 
Goal 

Goal Met or Not Met If Not Met, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take 

Academ 
ic Goal 
11 

Academ 
ic Goal 

All students will gain 
acceptance to a two
or four year college 

For any student that
does not meet the 
achievement criteria 
above, s/he will
develop a
personalized plan
that clearly
articulates his/her
path to graduation
from SBCCHS and 
college readiness,
through additional
time, extended 
learning 

This measure will be 
applied to eligible
seniors during the
2019 2020 academic 
year. 

Student progress
towards graduation
including converted
credits and Regents
passage will be
calculated. For those 
needing customized
supports, individual
learning plans will
developed,
maintained, and 

SBC is orienting
students to college
options and
conducting goal and
postsecondary
planning through its
CORE advisory 
program. 

SBC has a full time 
College Access
specialist that will
provide support to
12th grade students
as they prepare to
apply to college. 

SBC's learning 
management system
contains information 
that helps to
populate and monitor
the effectiveness of 
students' individual 
learning plans. 

SBC's Lead Teachers 
and SPED Teachers 
will be resources to 
colleagues regarding
the development of 

5 / 9 
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updated. opportunities and
other external 
supports. 

Academ 
ic Goal 
13 

Academ 
ic Goal 
14 

Academ 
ic Goal 
15 

Academ 
ic Goal 
16 

Academ 
ic Goal 
17 

Academ 
ic Goal 
18 

Academ 
ic Goal 
19 

Academ 
ic Goal 
20 

3. Do have more academic goals No 

to add? 

4. ORGANIZATIONAL GOALS 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Organizational Goals 

Organizational Goal Measure Used to Goal Met or Not Met 
Evaluate Progress 

supportive learning
pathways for
students. 

If Not Met, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take 

Org
Goal 1 

Org
Goal 2 

6 / 9 



	 	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

Org
Goal 3 

Org
Goal 4 

Org
Goal 5 

Org
Goal 6 

Org
Goal 7 

Org
Goal 8 

Org
Goal 9 

Org
Goal 10 

Org
Goal 11 

Org
Goal 12 

Org
Goal 13 

Org
Goal 14 

Org
Goal 15 

Org
Goal 16 

Org
Goal 17 

Org
Goal 18 

Org
Goal 19 

Org
Goal 20 
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5. Do have more organizational No 

goals to add? 

6. FINANCIAL GOALS 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals 

Financial Goals Measure Used to 
Evaluate Progress 

Goal Met or Not Met 

Financia 
l Goal 1 

Financia 
l Goal 2 

Financia 
l Goal 3 

Financia 
l Goal 4 

Financia 
l Goal 5 

7. Do have more financial goals (No response) 
to add? 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals 

Financial Goals Measure Used to 
Evaluate Progress 

Goal Met or Not Met 

Financia 
l Goal 6 

Financia 
l Goal 7 

Financia 
l Goal 8 

Financia 
l Goal 9 

Financia 
l Goal 

If Not Met, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take 

If Not Met, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take 

8 / 9 
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Entry 4 Expenditures per Child 
Created: 08/05/2019 • Last updated: 08/12/2019 

SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOLSection Heading 

Financial Information 

This information is required of ALL charter schools. Provide the following measures of fiscal 
performance of the charter school in Appendix B (Total Expenditures and Administrative Expenditures 

Per Child): 

1. Total Expenditures Per Child 

To calculate ‘Total Expenditures per Child’ take total expenditures (from the unaudited 2018-
19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) and divide by the year end FTE student enrollment. 
(Integers Only. No dollar signs or commas). 

Note: The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the 

Audit Guide can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil 
calculations: Audit Guide available within the portal or on the NYSED website 

at: http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/regentsoversightplan/otherdocuments/auditguide2018.pdf. 

Line 1: Total Expenditures 4972491 

Line 2: Year End FTE student enrollment 283 

Line 3: Divide Line 1 by Line 2 17570 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	

2. Administrative Expenditures per Child 

To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' To calculate “Administrative Expenditures per 
Child” first add together the following: 

1. Take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’ 
column (from the unaudited 2018 19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) 

2. Any contracted administrative/management fee paid to other organizations or corporations 

3. Take the total from above and divide it by the year end FTE enrollment. The relevant portion that must 
be included in this calculation is defined as follows: 

Administrative Expenditures: Administration and management of the charter school includes the 

activities and personnel of the offices of the chief school officer, the finance or business offices, school 
operations personnel, data management and reporting, human resources, technology, etc. It also 

includes those administrative and management services provided by other organizations or corporations 

on behalf of the charter school for which the charter school pays a fee or other compensation. Do not 
include the FTE of personnel whose role is to directly support the instructional program. 

Notes: 
The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the Audit Guide 

can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil calculations: 
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html. 
Employee benefit costs or expenditures should not be reported in the above calculations. 

Line 1: Relevant Personnel Services 
Cost (Row) 

Line 2: Management and General Cost
(Column) 

Line 3: Sum of Line 1 and Line 2 

Line 5: Divide Line 3 by the Year End
FTE student enrollment 

Thank you. 

798732 

103900 

902632 

3189 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Board of Trustees 
South Bronx Community Charter High School 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of South Bronx Community Charter High School, which 
comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related statements of activities and changes 
in net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial  
statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial  
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 
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 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of South Bronx Community Charter High School as of June 30, 2019, and the changes in its net assets and its cash 
flows for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Report on Summarized Comparative Information 

We have previously audited South Bronx Community Charter High School’s June 30, 2018 financial statements, and 
we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated October 25, 2018. 
In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, 
is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived. 

Other Report Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 31, 2019 on our 
consideration of South Bronx Community Charter High School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting 
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering South Bronx Community Charter High School’s internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance. 

Rochester, New York 
October 31, 2019 
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SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

ASSETS June 30, 
2019 2018 

CURRENT ASSETS
 Cash $ 656,975 $ 217,939 
  Grants and other receivables 355,617 130,928
  Security deposit - 111,096
  Prepaid expenses and other current assets 4,550 40,005  

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,017,142 499,968 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net 240,032 243,530 

OTHER ASSETS
  Security deposits - noncurrent 400,400 400,000
  Cash in escrow 77,476 52,249  

477,876 452,249  

TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,735,050 $  1,195,747  

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES
  Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 189,250 $ 90,177 
  Accrued payroll and benefits 147,864 94,663
  Due to New York City Department of Education 253,871  -

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 590,985 184,840 

NET ASSETS
  Without donor restrictions 1,144,065 1,010,907  

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 1,735,050 $  1,195,747  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

Without donor restrictions 

Operating revenue and support:
  State and local per pupil operating r
  Government grants 
  Private grants 
  In-kind rent 
  Other income 

evenue $ 

Year ended June 30, 
2019 2018 

4,909,862 $ 4,007,671
223,377 450,414
64,870 279,206

300,000 -
8,629 14,615  

TOTAL OPERATING 
REVENUE AND SUPPORT 5,506,738 4,751,906 

Expenses:
  Program:
    Regular education 

Special education 
  Management and general 

TOTAL EXPENSES 

3,701,147
1,003,592

668,841 

5,373,580 

2,773,030
 623,522
524,096 

3,920,648  

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 133,158 831,258 

Net assets at beginning of year 
NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $ 

1,010,907 

1,144,065 

179,649  

$  1,010,907  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

Year ended June 30, 
2019 2018 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES
  Change in net assets $ 133,158 $ 831,258 
  Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
    provided from operating activities:
      Depreciation             96,370 72,128
      Changes in certain assets and liabilities affecting operations:
        Grants and other receivables (224,689) 47,332
        Prepaid expenses and other current assets             35,455 (10,134)
        Accounts payable and accrued expenses             99,073 7,024
        Accrued payroll and benefits             53,201 42,453
        Due to New York City Department of Education           253,871 -
        Deferred revenue  - (261,654) 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 446,439 728,407 

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES
  Purchases of property and equipment           (92,872) (219,287)
  Change in cash in escrow           (25,227) (27,246)
  Security deposit           110,696 (459,429) 

NET CASH USED FOR 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (7,403) (705,962)  

NET INCREASE IN CASH 439,036 22,445 

Cash at beginning of year 217,939 195,494  

CASH AT END OF YEAR $ 656,975 $  217,939  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

- 8 -



 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 

   
   

   
 

  
 

 

 
   

 
      

   
            

 
 

       
 

 

 
 

 
  

 
     

  
     

 
 

 

   
       

 
       

 

SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Charter School 
South Bronx Community Charter High School (the “Charter School”) is an educational corporation that operates 
as a charter school in Bronx, New York. The Charter School promotes student excellence through an emphasis 
on academic, personal and professional skills in a supportive and responsive learning environment. The Charter 
School’s students graduate with a positive sense of self, ready to  design and realize their futures in college,  
community and career.  On November 17, 2015 the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York 
granted the Charter School a provisional charter valid for a term of five years and renewable upon its expiration 
on June 30, 2021. 

Basis of accounting 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Classification of net assets 
To ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on the use of resources available to the Charter School, 
the accounts of the Charter School are maintained in accordance with the principles of accounting for not-for-profit 
organizations.  This is the procedure by which resources are classified for reporting purposes into net asset groups, 
established according to their nature and purpose. Accordingly, all financial transactions have been recorded and 
reported by net asset group. 

The assets, liabilities, activities, and net assets are classified based on the existence or absence of donor or grantor-
imposed restrictions.  Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified and reported as follows: 

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 
Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions. The 
Board of Trustees has discretionary control to use these in carrying on operations in accordance with the 
guidelines established by the Charter School. 

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions 
Net assets subject to donor (or certain grantor) imposed restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are 
temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or other events specified by the donor. 
Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources  be  
maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires, that is, when the 
stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, 
or both. The Charter School had no net assets with donor restrictions at June 30, 2019 or 2018. 

Revenue and support recognition 
Revenue from state and local governments resulting from the Charter School’s charter status and based on the 
number of students enrolled is recorded when services are performed in accordance with the charter agreement. 

Revenue from federal, state and local government grants and contracts are recorded by the Charter School when 
qualifying expenditures are incurred and billable. 
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SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, 
 Cont’d  

Contributions 
Contributions are recorded as restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of 
the donated assets. A contribution that is received and expended in the same year for a specific purpose is 
classified as revenue without donor restriction. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated 
purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor 
restrictions and reported in the statement of activities and changes in net assets as net assets released from 
restrictions. 

Cash 
Cash balances are maintained at a financial institution located in New York and are insured by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. In the normal course of business, the cash account balances at any given 
time may exceed insured limits. However, the Charter School has not experienced any losses in such accounts 
and does not believe it is exposed to significant risk in cash. 

Cash in escrow 
The Charter School maintains cash in an escrow account in accordance with the terms of its charter agreement.  
The agreement requires $25,000 be placed in escrow each of the first three years of operations and a balance of 
$75,000 be maintained to fund any audit and legal expenses incurred should the Charter School cease operations 
and dissolve. The amount in escrow was $77,476 and $52,249 at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 

Grants and other receivables 
Grants and other receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances.  
Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts based on its assessment of the current status of individual 
receivables from grants, agencies and others. Balances that are still outstanding after management has used 
reasonable collection efforts are written off against the allowance for doubtful accounts. There was no allowance 
for doubtful accounts at June 30, 2019 or 2018. 

Property and equipment 
Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line 
method on a basis considered adequate to depreciate the assets over their estimated useful lives, which range 
from three to seven years.   

Contributed services 
The Charter School receives contributed services from volunteers to develop its academic program and to serve 
on the Board of Trustees. In addition, the Charter School received donated transportation services that were 
provided for the students by the local district. The Charter School was unable to determine a value for these 
services. 

In-kind contributions 
Gifts and donations other than cash are recorded at fair market value at the date of contribution.  As described in 
Note D, beginning in July 2018 the Charter School was provided space in a New York City Department of 
Education facility. The Charter School has estimated a value of $300,000 for the space for the year ended June 30, 
2019. The Charter School has recorded in-kind revenue of $300,000 with offsetting expense of the same amount 
included in building and land rent/lease on the accompanying statement of functional expenses.  
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SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, 
 Cont’d  

Expense allocation 
Directly identifiable expenses are charged to programs and supporting services. Expenses related to more than 
one function are allocated to programs and supporting services based upon management estimates. The most 
significant expense allocations used in the preparation of these financial statements are as follows:

 Salaries  …………………………………………………………...… Level of effort 
 Payroll  taxes  and  fringes  ……………………………………….…  Based  upon  salaries 
 Occupancy  related  costs  ………………………………………….  Square  footage  used  

Tax exempt status 
The Charter School is a tax-exempt organization under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and 
applicable state regulations and, accordingly, is exempt from federal and state taxes on income. 

The Charter School files Form 990 tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction. The tax returns for the period 
ended June 30, 2016 through the year ended June 30, 2019 are still subject to potential audit by the IRS. 
Management of the Charter School believes it has no material uncertain tax positions and, accordingly, it has not 
recognized any liability for unrecognized tax benefits. 

Marketing costs 
The Charter School expenses marketing costs as they are incurred. Total marketing and recruiting costs 
approximated $23,000 and $5,000 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 

Due to New York City Department of Education (“NYCDOE”) 
Amounts due to NYCDOE include overpayments of per-pupil revenue and rental assistance which are payable 
to NYCDOE. 

Deferred revenue 
The Charter School records grant revenue as deferred revenue until it is expended for the purpose of the grant, at 
which time it is recognized as revenue. 

Use of estimates in the preparation of financial statements 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 
the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

Comparatives for year ended June 30, 2018 
The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in total but not by net 
asset class or functional classification. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a 
presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United  States of  America.  
Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Charter School’s financial statements for 
the year ended June 30, 2018, from which the summarized information was derived. 

- 11 -



 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 

  
      

 
   

   
 

 
 

      

 
  

      
 

 
 

 
  

 
    

 
    

 
    

        

 
   

 
 

 
  

 
  

 
  

SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, 
 Cont’d  

Change in accounting principle 
During August 2016 FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-14 “Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958) 
Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities”.  The main provisions of ASU 2016-14 require a 
Not-For-Profit (NFP) to: 

1) Present on the face of the statement of financial position amounts for two classes of net assets at the end of 
the period, rather than three classes. That is, an NFP will report amounts for net assets with donor restrictions 
and net assets without donor restrictions, as well as the currently required amount for total net assets. 

2) Present on the face of the statement of activities the amount of the change in each of the two classes of net 
assets (noted in item 1) rather than that of the required three classes as in prior years. An NFP would continue 
to report the currently required amount of the change in total net assets for the period. 

3) Continue to present on the face of the statement of cash flows the net amount for operating cash flows using 
either the direct or indirect method of reporting but no longer require the presentation or disclosure of the 
indirect method (reconciliation) if using the direct method. 

4) Provide enhanced disclosures about:  

a) Composition of net assets with donor restrictions at the end of the period and how the restrictions affect 
the use of resources. 

b) Qualitative information that communicates how a NFP manages its liquid resources available to meet  
cash needs for general expenditures within one year of the statement of financial position date. 

c) Quantitative information, and additional qualitative information, that communicates the availability of 
an NFP’s financial assets at the statement of financial position date to meet cash needs for general 
expenditures within one year of the statement of financial position date. Availability of a financial asset 
may be affected by (1) its nature, (2) external limits imposed by donors, grantors, laws, and contracts 
with others, and (3) internal limits imposed by Board of Trustee decisions. 

d) Amounts of expenses by both their natural classification and their functional classification. That analysis 
of expenses is to be provided in one location. 

e) Method(s) used to allocate costs among program and support functions. 

ASU 2016-14 is effective for financial statements beginning after December 15, 2017 and was applied 
retrospectively except for disclosures regarding liquidity and availability of resources, which are presented only 
for the current year. There was no effect on total assets or changes in net assets. The Charter School has adopted 
the amendments effective July 1, 2018. 
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SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, 
 Cont’d  

New accounting pronouncements 

Revenue from contracts with customers 
In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued a new standard related to revenue 
recognition. Under the standard, revenue is recognized when a customer obtains control of promised goods or 
services in an amount that reflects the consideration the entity expects to receive in exchange for those goods 
or services. For nonpublic entities, the guidance in this new standard is effective for annual reporting periods 
beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim reporting periods within annual reporting periods beginning 
after December 15, 2019. The Charter School is currently evaluating the provisions of this standard to 
determine the impact the new standard will have on the Charter School’s financial position or results of 
operations. 

Leases 
In February 2016, the FASB issued a new standard related to leases to increase transparency and comparability 
among entities by requiring the recognition of right-of-use (“ROU”) assets and lease liabilities on the statement 
of financial position.  Most prominent among the changes in the standard is the recognition of ROU assets and 
lease liabilities by lessees for those leases classified as operating leases under current U.S. GAAP.  For 
nonpublic entities, the guidance in this new standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 
2019, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020.  Recently an exposure draft 
was issued which would delay the effective date by one year. The Charter School is currently evaluating the 
provisions of this standard to determine the impact the new standard will have on the Charter School’s financial 
position or results of operations. 

Subsequent events 
The Charter School has conducted an evaluation of potential subsequent events occurring after the statement of 
financial position date through October 31, 2019, which is the date the financial statements are available to be 
issued. Except as described in Note D, no subsequent events requiring disclosure were noted. 
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SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE B: LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY 

The Charter School regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other contractual 
commitments. The Charter School’s main source of liquidity is its cash accounts. 

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month period, the Charter 
School considers all expenditures related to its ongoing activities of education and public service as well as the 
conduct of services undertaken to support those activities to be general expenditures.  

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months, the Charter School 
operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient revenue to cover general expenditures not 
covered by donor-restricted resources. Refer to the statement of cash flows which identifies the sources and uses 
of the Charter School’s cash and shows positive cash generated by operations for fiscal year 2019. 

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting their use, 
within one year of the statement of financial position date, comprise the following at June 30, 2019: 

Cash $ 656,975 
Grants and other receivables 355,617 

Total financial assets available to management 
for general expenditures within one year $ 1,012,592 

NOTE C: PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment consisted of the following: 

June 30, 
2019 2018 

Furniture and fixtures $ 129,816 $ 122,331 
Computers 256,713 188,133 
Software 2,560 2,560 
Construction in progress 41,697 24,890  

430,786 337,914 
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 190,754 94,384 

$ 240,032 $ 243,530 

Total depreciation and amortization expense was $96,370 and $72,128 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 
2018, respectively.  
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SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE D: SCHOOL FACILITY 

The Charter School signed a lease for its facility with a third party commencing July 1, 2016 through June 30, 
2017. In June 2017, the Charter School renewed their lease on the existing space and added additional square 
footage to accommodate the growth of the school through June 30, 2018. Base rent for the year ended June 30, 
2018 was $666,575. In addition, the Charter School was required to deposit an additional $59,429 with the 
landlord to be held as a security deposit. The Charter School did not renew the lease and moved into a New York 
City Department of Education building in July 2018 under a verbal agreement. Pursuant to the terms of the 
agreement, the Charter School shall not pay for the use of the shared facility. The security deposit from the 
previous lease was applied to the final months’ rent. 

The NYCDOE space is not large enough to accommodate the future anticipated growth of the Charter School, 
therefore, the Charter School signed a lease for a new facility commencing tentatively on August 1, 2019, through 
September 30, 2029. At this time, lease commencement is expected to be delayed until July 2021, with the term 
continuing through June 2041. The lease required a deposit of $500,000, of which $405,000 is to be held as a 
security deposit and $95,000 to be held as prepaid rent. As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Charter School has 
paid $400,000 toward the security deposit, and is withholding the final $100,000 until the developer has secured 
construction financing. Future lease payments are expected to be approximately $163,000 per month at the 
beginning of the lease and increasing to $295,000 per month over the 20 year lease term. 

NOTE E: CONTINGENCY 

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by funding sources or others.  Such audits might result in 
disallowance of costs submitted for reimbursement by the Charter School. Management is of the opinion that 
such disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the accompanying financial statements. 
Accordingly, no amounts have been provided in the accompanying financial statements for such potential claims. 

NOTE F: CONCENTRATIONS 

At June 30, 2019 and 2018, approximately 99% and 94%, respectively, of grants and other receivables are due 
from a New York State agency related to certain grants. 

For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, approximately 94% and 84%, respectively, of total operating 
revenue and support came from per-pupil funding provided by New York State. The per-pupil rate is set annually 
by the State based on the school district in which the Charter School’s students are located.  

NOTE G: RETIREMENT PLAN

During August 2017, the Charter School began sponsoring a 403(b) retirement plan (the “Plan”) for its 
employees. The Plan allows the Charter School to make discretionary contributions to the Plan on behalf of the 
employees. During the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Charter School contributed approximately 
$38,700 and $12,731, respectively, to the Plan. There were no administrative fees for the year ended June 30, 
2019. Administrative fees were approximately $1,400 for the year ended June 30, 2018. 
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SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

REPORT REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

      
 

 
 
 

 
  

 
         

   
      

 
   

 

 
  

 
 

   
   

 
 

    
  

     
   

 

 
   

            
    

  
  

   
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND 
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Board of Trustees 
South Bronx Community Charter High School 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller  
General of the United States, the financial statements of South Bronx  Community  Charter  High  School,  which  
comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019 and the related statements of activities and changes 
in net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial  
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 31, 2019. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered South Bronx Community Charter 
High School’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of South Bronx Community Charter High School’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of South Bronx Community Charter High 
School’s internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the preceding 
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies, and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may 
exist that were not identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses, we 
identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses 
and significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not  allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiency 2019-002 as described in 
the accompanying schedule of findings and responses to be a material weakness. 
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 A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the 
deficiency 2019-001 described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses to be a significant deficiency. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether South Bronx Community Charter High School’s financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our 
tests disclosed an instance of noncompliance or other matter that is required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards and which is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as item 2019-
001. 

South Bronx Community Charter High School’s Response to Findings 

South Bronx Community Charter High School’s response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and responses. South Bronx Community Charter High School’s response was not 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no 
opinion on it. 

Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any 
other purpose. 

Rochester, New York 
October 31, 2019 
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SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Finding 2019-001 

Statement of condition 
During our audit we noted the Charter School did not properly submit their final grant expenditure reports for the 
Title I and Title II grants on time for the prior grant year to receive final payments.  In addition, the Charter School 
did not submit their grant expenditure budget reports for the Title I and Title II grants in a timely manner for the 
current year’s grant. 

Criteria and effect of conditions 
During our audit we noted the Charter School did not file their final Title I and Title II grant forms to receive payment 
for the prior year grant funds earned. These submissions were due in September 2018. In June 2019, the New York 
State Education Department (“NYSED”) contacted the Charter School regarding the submissions, however the 
Charter School did not finally submit the required documents until late September 2019. In addition, we noted during 
the audit the Charter School did not apply for the Title I and Title II grants for the fiscal 2019 year until late September 
2019 despite budgets being due at the beginning of the grant year, which was September 2018. 

Recommendation 
We recommend the Charter School properly submit all required grant budgets and reports in a timely manner.  
Management should also review outstanding receivables on a regular basis and follow up on any overdue items. 

Management response 
Since the sudden departure of the Business Manager, the Charter School has increased the services being rendered 
from its outside fiscal consultant in order to put into place new policies and procedures which will monitor and track 
important deadlines for its business office filings. Through extensive communication with the Charter School’s 
NYSED contact, we have been assured now that we have filed the Title I and Title II grants for previous years and 
are up-to-date, we should have no issue receiving the funds. In addition, the 2019 Title grants were submitted initially 
in June 2019, and there was ongoing communication between the Executive Director and our direct contact at the 
ESSA program office regarding the submission and adjustments that needed to be made. There were some unfortunate 
communication gaps beyond the control of the Executive Director which resulted in the perception that South Bronx 
Community Charter School had lapsed in the submission of the necessary documentation. Going forward the Charter 
School will continue to monitor its grant funding on a regular basis in order to ensure timely filing and collections. 
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SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES, Cont’d 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Finding 2019-002 

Statement of condition 
During our audit we noted the Charter School did not properly enter and reconcile their special education (“SPED”) 
full-time equivalents (“FTEs”) in the ATS portal. 

Criteria and effect of conditions 
During our audit we noted the Charter School had a significant fluctuation in special education FTEs from mid-year 
to year end. Upon further review, management noted certain students had changed SPED allocation levels for the 
full year instead of at the date of the change in service level. This could result in a significant understatement or 
overstatement of amounts earned by the Charter School.    

Recommendation 
We recommend management review the updates to the ATS portal for students receiving special education services 
to ensure necessary changes were properly recorded, or follow up with NYCDOE for assistance if needed. 

Management response 
The Charter School will be assigning specific personnel who will be responsible for monitoring and updating on a 
regular basis the per pupil information reported on the NYC Vendor Portal for which it claims its enrollment to 
receive funding for both general education and special education student tuition. Previously, this was the 
responsibility of the Business Manager, who did not monitor this regularly.  Moving forward, specific business office 
tasks, such as this, will be delegated to specific personnel and monitored by management. 
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October  31,  2019  

Board of Trustees 
South Bronx Community Charter High School 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of South Bronx Community Charter High School 
(the “Charter School”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, we considered the Charter School’s internal control over financial 
reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for 
the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the Charter School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Charter School’s internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not 
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses and, therefore, material 
weaknesses may exist that were not identified. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in 
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses and significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A reasonable possibility exists when the 
likelihood of an event occurring is either reasonably possible or probable as defined as follows: 

x Reasonably possible. The chance of the future event or events occurring is more than remote but less than 
likely. 

x Probable. The future event or events are likely to occur. 
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We consider the following deficiency in the entity’s internal control to be a material weakness: 

Improper Reporting of Special Education 
During our audit we noted the Charter School had a significant fluctuation in special education FTEs from mid-year 
to year end. Upon further review, management noted certain students had changed SPED allocation levels for the 
full year instead of at the date of the change in service level. This could result in a significant understatement or 
overstatement of amounts earned by the Charter School. 

Recommendation 
We recommend management review the updates to the ATS portal for students receiving special education 
services to ensure necessary changes were properly recorded, or follow up  with NYCDOE for assistance if  
needed. 

Management’s response 
The Charter School will be assigning specific personnel who will be responsible for monitoring and 
updating on a regular basis the per pupil information reported on the NYC Vendor Portal for which it 
claims its enrollment to receive funding for both general education and special education student tuition. 
Previously, this was the responsibility of the Business Manager, who did not monitor this regularly.  
Moving forward, specific business office tasks, such as this, will be delegated to specific personnel and 
monitored by management. 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than 
a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the  
following deficiency in the entity’s internal control to be a significant deficiency: 

Grant Submissions 
During our audit we noted the Charter School did not file their final Title I and Title II  grant forms to receive  
payment for the prior year grant funds earned. These submissions were due in September 2018. In June 2019, the 
New York State Education Department (“NYSED”) contacted the Charter School regarding the submissions, 
however the Charter School did not finally submit the required documents until late September 2019. In addition, 
we noted during the audit the Charter School did not apply for the Title I and Title II grants for the fiscal 2019 year 
until late September 2019 despite budgets being due at the beginning of the grant year, which was September 2018. 

Recommendation 
We recommend that the Charter School properly submit all required grant reports and budgets in a timely 
manner. Management should also review outstanding receivables on a regular basis and follow up on any 
overdue items. 

Management’s response 
Since the sudden departure of the Business Manager, the Charter School has increased the services being  
rendered from its outside fiscal consultant in order to put into place new policies and procedures which will 
monitor and track important deadlines for its business office filings.  Through extensive communication 
with the Charter School’s NYSED contact, we have been assured now that we have filed the Title I and 
Title II grants for previous years and are up-to-date, we should have no issue receiving the funds.  In 
addition, the 2019 Title grants were submitted initially in June 2019, and there was ongoing communication 
between the Executive Director and our direct contact at the ESSA program office regarding the 
submission and adjustments that needed to be made. There were some unfortunate communication gaps 
beyond the control of the Executive Director which resulted in the perception that South Bronx Community 
Charter School had lapsed in the submission of the necessary documentation. Going forward the Charter 
School will continue to monitor its grant  funding  on  a  regular  basis in order to ensure timely filing and 
collections. 
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* * * * * 

South Bronx Community Charter High School’s written responses to the material weaknesses and significant 
deficiencies identified in our audit have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the  
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, Finance Committee members, 
and the Board of Trustees and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. 

The purpose of this communication is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and the results of that testing. This communication is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering South Bronx Community Charter High School’s internal 
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

We appreciate the cooperation from your staff that our personnel received during the audit of the Charter School’s 
financial statements. Should you have any questions or comments, please contact Jackie Lee or Kurt Button. 

 Very  truly  yours,

 MENGEL,  METZGER,  BARR  &  CO.  LLP  
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FILL I  GRAY CELLS
South Bronx Community Charter High School

Statement of Financial Position 
as of June 30 

2019 

CURRE T ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 656,9 5 
Grants and contracts receivable 355,61  
Accounts receivables -
Prepaid Expenses 4,550 
Contributions and other receivables -
Other current assets -
TOTAL CURRE T ASSETS  1,017,142 

 O -CURRE T ASSETS 
Property, Building and Equipment, net $ 240,032 
 estricted Cash   ,4 6 
Security Deposits 400,400 
Other Non-Current Assets -
TOTAL  O -CURRE T 717,908 

 

TOTAL ASSETS 1,735,050 

CURRE T LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 189,250 
Accrued payroll, payroll taxes and benefts 14 ,864 
Current Portion of Loan Payable -
Due to  elated Parties 253,8 1 
 efundable Advances -
Deferred  evenue -
Other Current Liabilities -
TOTAL CURRE T 

 
590,985 

LO G-TERM LIABILITIES 
Loan Payable; Due in More than One Year $ -
Deferred  ent -
Due to  elated Party -
Other Long-Term Liabilities -
TOTAL LO G-TERM 

 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  590,985 



               

                               

                               
 

             

 

 ET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted 
Permanently restricted 
TOTAL  ET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES A D  ET ASSETS 

$ 1,144,065 

-

-
1,144,065 

1,735,050 

CK - Should be zero  



                  
                    
                               
                      
                               
                    

                  
                      

                    

                               

          

                    

                      

                               

                               

                               

                               

                               

                             

                               

                               

                               
 

 

2018 

$ 21 ,939 
130,928 

-
40,005 

-
111,096

 499,968 

$ 243,530 
52,249 

400,000 

-
695,779 

1,195,747 

$ 90,1   

94,663 

-

-

-

-

-
184,840 

$ -

-

-

-
-

184,840 



               

                               

                               

          

 

$ 1,010,90  

-

-
1,010,907 

1,195,747

 -



     
    

  
   

  

   
               

                               
                               

                               
                    
  

                               
     

  
 
               
                 

                               
  

                    
  

    

       

    
                             
                               

                               
                               

                    
                               

      

                            

    

                    
                                  

       

  
 

         

FILL I  GRAY CELLS 
South Bronx Community Charter High S 

Statement of Activities 
as of June 30 

2019 
Unrestricted Temporarily

Restricted 

OPERATI G REVE UE
 State and Local Per Pupil  evenue -  eg. Ed $ 4,909,862  $ 
 State and Local Per Pupil  evenue - SPED -
 State and Local Per Pupil Facilities  evenue -
 Federal Grants -
 State and City Grants 223,3  
 Other Operating Income  3,499

  egular Education $ 3, 01,14   
 Special Education 1,003,592
 Other Programs -

 Management and general 668,841
 Fundraising

 Interest and Other Income $ -
 Contributions and Grants -
 Fundraising Support -
 Investments -
 Donated Services 300,000
 Other Support and  evenue -

 et Assets Released from Restrictions / Loss on $ -
  

 ET ASSETS - BEGI  I G OF YEAR $ 1,010,90   
PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTME TS -

-

 Food Service/Child Nutrition Program -
TOTAL OPERATI G REVE UE  5,206,738 

EXPE SES
 Program Services

-

 Total Program Services  4,704,739 

TOTAL EXPE SES  5,373,580 

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM OPERATIO S  (166,842)  

SUPPORT A D OTHER REVE UE
 $ -

TOTAL SUPPORT A D OTHER REVE UE  300,000 

$ -

CHA GE I   ET ASSETS  133,158 

-

 ET ASSETS - E D OF YEAR  $ 1,144,065 $ -



CK - Should be zero 



    

             
                              
                              
                              

                  

                              

             
                  

                              

                  
 

  
  
  
  

 
  

 

  

                
                              

chool 

2018 
Total Total

 $ 4,909,862 
-
-
-

223,377 
73,499 

-
5,206,738 

$ 4,00 ,6 1
-
-
-

450,414
293,821

-
4,751,906 

$ 3,701,147 $ 
1,003,592 

-
4,704,739 

668,841 
-

5,373,580 ##

2,  3,030
623,522

-
3,396  

524,096

 3,920,  

(166,842)##  831  

$ 

$ 

-
-
-
-

300,000 
-

300,000 

-

$ 

$ 

-

-

133,158 83  

$ 1,010,907 
-

$ 1 9,649
-

$ 1,144,065 $ 1,010,907 
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FILL I  GRAY CELLS 
South Bronx Community Charter High Schoo  

Statement of Cash Flows 
as of Ju 

2019 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATI G ACTIVITIES 
Increase (decrease) in net assets $ 133,158 
 evenues from School Districts -
Accounts  eceivable -
Due from School Districts -
Depreciation 96,3 0 
Grants  eceivable (224,689) 
Due from NYS -
Grant revenues -
Prepaid Expenses 35,455 
Accounts Payable 99,0 3 
Accrued Expenses -
Accrued Liabilities 253,8 1 
Contributions and fund-raising activities -
Miscellaneous sources 53,201 
Deferred  evenue -
Interest payments -
Other -
Other -
 ET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATI G ACTIVITIES  $ 446,439 

CASH FLOWS - I VESTI G ACTIVITIES  $ 
Purchase of equipment (92,8 2) 
Other -
 ET CASH PROVIDED FROM I VESTI G ACTIVITIES  $ (92,872) 

CASH FLOWS - FI A CI G ACTIVITIES  $ 
Principal payments on long-term debt (25,22 ) 
Other 110,696 
 ET CASH PROVIDED FROM FI A CI G ACTIVITIES  $ 85,469 

 ET (DECREASE) I CREASE I  CASH A D CASH EQUIVALE TS $ 439,036 
Cash at beginning of year 21 ,939 
CASH A D CASH EQUIVALE TS AT E D OF YEAR  $ 656,975 



 

                              
                                            
                                            
                                            
                                  
                                  
                                            
                                            
                                
                                    
                                            
                                            
                                            
                                  
                              
                                            
                                            
                                            

                              
                                            

                                
                              

                                

ol 

une 30 

2018 

$ 831,258 
-
-
-

 2,128 
4 ,332 

-
-

(10,134) 
 ,024 

-
-
-

42,453 
(261,654) 

-
-
-

$ 728,407 

$ 
(219,28 ) 

-
$ (219,287)

 $ 
(2 ,246) 
(459,429)

 $ (486,675)

 $ 22,445 
195,494

 $ 217,939 
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South Bronx 
FILL I  GRAY CELL 
Community Charter 

Statement of Functional Ex 
as of June 30 

Program Services 
No. of Regular Special Other Total 

Personnel Services Costs  $  $  $  $ 
Administrative Staf Personnel 
Instructional Personnel 

8.00 
45.00 

389,0 4 
1,803,93  

105,500
489,149

 -
-

494,574 
2,293,086 

Non-Instructional Personnel  - - - -
Total Salaries and Staf  53.00 2,193,011 594,649 -2,787,660 
Fringe Benefts & Payroll Taxes 
 etirement 

638,13  
2 ,348 

1 3,035
 ,416

 -
-

811,1  
34,  

Management Company Fees - - -
Legal Service - - -
Accounting / Audit Services - - -
Other Purchased / Professional / 
Building and Land  ent / Lease 
 epairs & Maintenance 

52,930 
251,  6 
25,649 

14,352
68,2 1
6,955

 -
-
-

67,2  
320,04  
32,6  

Insurance 24,093 6,533  - 30,6  
Utilities - - -
Supplies / Materials 
Equipment / Furnishings 
Staf Development 

48,541 
10,211 
30,420 

13,162
2, 69
8,249

 -
-
-

61,  
12,9  
38,6  

Marketing  /  ecruitment 16,41  4,452  - 20,8  
Technology 23,8 3 6,4 3  - 30,3  
Food Service - - -
Student Services 
Ofce Expense 

215,25  
9,259 

58,369
2,511

 -
-

273,6  
11,  

Depreciation 68,08  18,462  - 86,5  
OTHE  66,138 1 ,934  - 84,0  
Total Expenses  $ 3,701,147 $ 1,003,592 $ - $ 4,704,739 



 

 
  

                             
                                       
                                                       
 
                               
                                   
                                 
                             
                                                       
                                 
                               
                                   
                                   
                                             
                                   
                                   
                                   
                                     
                                     
                                                       
                                          
                                     
                                   
                                   
 

  

S 
r High School 
penses 

019 2018 
Supporting Services 

Fundraising Management 
$  $  $

Total
 $

Total 
$

 -
-

316,324
-

316,324 
-

810,898 
2,293,086 

590,933
1,39 ,9 6

 - - - - -
-
-
-
-
-

316,324 
92,046
3,944
21,313
144, 21

 316,324 
92,046 
3,944 

21,313 
144,721 

3,103,984 
903,218 
38,708 
21,313 

144,721 

1,988,9  
483,5  
14,161
11,440

124,4 6
 - - - - -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 ,635
36,316
3,699
3,4 5

-
 ,002
1,4 3
4,38 
2,368
3,443

 7,635 
36,316 
3,699 
3,475 

-
7,002 
1,473 
4,387 
2,368 
3,443 

74,917 
356,363 
36,303 
34,101 

-
68,705 
14,453 
43,056 
23,237 
33,789 

129,050
666,5 5
10,412
28,408
 4,516
50,846
12, 8 
44,148
5,355
6,512

 - - - - -

$ 

-
-
-
-

- $ 

-
1,335
9,821
9,539

668,841 $ 

-
1,335 
9,821 
9,539 

668,841 $ 

273,626 
13,105 
96,370 
93,611 

5,373,580 $ 

163,644
5,282
 2,128
28,422

3,920,648 



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	

	 	

	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	

	

Entry 5c Additional Financial Docs 
Last updated: 11/02/2019 

The additional items listed below should be uploaded if applicable. Please explain the reason(s) if the 

items are not included. Examples might include: a written management letter was not issued; the school 
did not expend federal funds in excess of the Single Audit Threshold of $750,000; the corrective action 

plan will be submitted by the following date (should be no later than 30 days from the submission of the 

report); etc. 

Section Heading 

1. Management Letter 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/119180024/8mMIunnVv3/ 

Explanation for not uploading (No response) 
the Management Letter. 

2. Form 990 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/119180024/FlNDqRIBTE/ 

Explanation for not uploading (No response) 
the Form 990. 

3. Federal Single Audit 

Note: A copy of the Federal Single Audit must be filed with the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. Please refer 
to OMB Uniform Guidelines for the federal filing requirements. 

(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading The school did not expend federal funds in excess of the Single 

the Federal Single Audit. Audit Threshold of $750,000 

4. CSP Agreed Upon Procedure Report 

(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading (No response) 
the procedure report. 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	

5. Evidence of Required Escrow Account 

Note: For BOR schools chartered or renewed after the 2017-2018 school year, the 

escrow account per school is $100,000. 

(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading (No response) 
the Escrow evidence. 

6. Corrective Action Plan 

A Corrective Action Plan for Audit Findings and Management Letter Recommendations, which must 
include: 

a. The person responsible 

b. The date action was taken, or will be taken 

c. Description of the action taken 

d. Evidence of implementation (if available) 
(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading the corrective action plan will be submitted by the following 

the Corrective Action Plan. date: November 30, 2019 

2 / 2 



 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY 
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October 31, 2019 

Board of Trustees 
South Bronx Community Charter High School 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of South Bronx Community Charter High School 
(the “Charter School”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, we considered the Charter School’s internal control over financial 
reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for 
the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the Charter School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Charter School’s internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not 
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses and, therefore, material 
weaknesses may exist that were not identified. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in 
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses and significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A reasonable possibility exists when the 
likelihood of an event occurring is either reasonably possible or probable as defined as follows: 

 Reasonably possible. The chance of the future event or events occurring is more than remote but less than 
likely. 

 Probable. The future event or events are likely to occur. 

- 1 -



 

 

 
 

  
   

 
  

 
 

    

 

 
    

   
 

 
  

 

 

    
  

   
    

  
 
 

 
    

 

   
 

   
   

 
 

 
   

     
      

  

We consider the following deficiency in the entity’s internal control to be a material weakness: 

Improper Reporting of Special Education 
During our audit we noted the Charter School had a significant fluctuation in special education FTEs from mid-year 
to year end. Upon further review, management noted certain students had changed SPED allocation levels for the 
full year instead of at the date of the change in service level. This could result in a significant understatement or 
overstatement of amounts earned by the Charter School. 

Recommendation 
We recommend management review the updates to the ATS portal for students receiving special education 
services to ensure necessary changes were properly recorded, or follow up with NYCDOE for assistance if 
needed. 

Management’s response 
The Charter School will be assigning specific personnel who will be responsible for monitoring and 
updating on a regular basis the per pupil information reported on the NYC Vendor Portal for which it 
claims its enrollment to receive funding for both general education and special education student tuition. 
Previously, this was the responsibility of the Business Manager, who did not monitor this regularly.  
Moving forward, specific business office tasks, such as this, will be delegated to specific personnel and 
monitored by management. 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than 
a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the 
following deficiency in the entity’s internal control to be a significant deficiency: 

Grant Submissions 
During our audit we noted the Charter School did not file their final Title I and Title II grant forms to receive 
payment for the prior year grant funds earned. These submissions were due in September 2018. In June 2019, the 
New York State Education Department (“NYSED”) contacted the Charter School regarding the submissions, 
however the Charter School did not finally submit the required documents until late September 2019. In addition, 
we noted during the audit the Charter School did not apply for the Title I and Title II grants for the fiscal 2019 year 
until late September 2019 despite budgets being due at the beginning of the grant year, which was September 2018. 

Recommendation 
We recommend that the Charter School properly submit all required grant reports and budgets in a timely 
manner. Management should also review outstanding receivables on a regular basis and follow up on any 
overdue items. 

Management’s response 
Since the sudden departure of the Business Manager, the Charter School has increased the services being 
rendered from its outside fiscal consultant in order to put into place new policies and procedures which will 
monitor and track important deadlines for its business office filings.  Through extensive communication 
with the Charter School’s NYSED contact, we have been assured now that we have filed the Title I and 
Title II grants for previous years and are up-to-date, we should have no issue receiving the funds.  In 
addition, the 2019 Title grants were submitted initially in June 2019, and there was ongoing communication 
between the Executive Director and our direct contact at the ESSA program office regarding the 
submission and adjustments that needed to be made. There were some unfortunate communication gaps 
beyond the control of the Executive Director which resulted in the perception that South Bronx Community 
Charter School had lapsed in the submission of the necessary documentation. Going forward the Charter 
School will continue to monitor its grant funding on a regular basis in order to ensure timely filing and 
collections. 
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* * * * * 

South Bronx Community Charter High School’s written responses to the material weaknesses and significant 
deficiencies identified in our audit have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, Finance Committee members, 
and the Board of Trustees and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. 

The purpose of this communication is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and the results of that testing. This communication is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering South Bronx Community Charter High School’s internal 
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

We appreciate the cooperation from your staff that our personnel received during the audit of the Charter School’s 
financial statements. Should you have any questions or comments, please contact Jackie Lee or Kurt Button. 

Very truly yours, 

MENGEL, METZGER, BARR & CO. LLP 

- 3 -



Caution:  Forms printed from within Adobe Acrobat products may not meet IRS or state taxing agency 
specifications. When using Acrobat 9.x products and later products, select "None"in the "Page Scaling" 
selection box in the Adobe "Print" dialog. 

CLIENT'S COPY 



MAY 2, 2019 

ATTN: MR. JOHN CLEMENTE 
SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
730 CONCOURSE VILLAGE W.,TOWER B 
BRONX, NY 10451 

ATTN: MR. JOHN CLEMENTE: 

ENCLOSED ARE THE ORIGINAL AND ONE COPY OF THE 2017 EXEMPT 
ORGANIZATION RETURN, AS FOLLOWS... 

2017 FORM 990 

EACH ORIGINAL SHOULD BE DATED, SIGNED AND FILED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH THE FILING INSTRUCTIONS. THE COPY SHOULD BE RETAINED 
FOR YOUR FILES. 

PLEASE REVIEW THE RETURN FOR COMPLETENESS AND ACCURACY. 

WE SINCERELY APPRECIATE THE OPPORTUNITY TO SERVE YOU. PLEASE 
CONTACT US IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS CONCERNING THE TAX 
RETURN. 

VERY TRULY YOURS, 

JACQUELINE B. LEE, CPA 



TAX RETURN FILING INSTRUCTIONS 

FORM 990 

FOR THE YEAR ENDING 

JUNE 30, 2018~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Prepared for ATTN: MR. JOHN CLEMENTE 
SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
730 CONCOURSE VILLAGE W.,TOWER B 
BRONX, NY 10451 

Prepared by 
MENGEL, METZGER, BARR & CO. LLP 
100 CHESTNUT STREET, SUITE 1200 
ROCHESTER, NY 14604 

Amount due 
or refund 

NOT APPLICABLE 

Make check 
payable to NOT APPLICABLE 

Mail tax return 
and check (if 
applicable) to NOT APPLICABLE 

Return must be 
mailed on 
or before 

NOT APPLICABLE 

Special 
Instructions 

THIS RETURN HAS BEEN PREPARED FOR ELECTRONIC FILING. IF YOU 
WISH TO HAVE IT TRANSMITTED ELECTRONICALLY TO THE IRS, PLEASE 
SIGN, DATE, AND RETURN FORM 8879-EO TO OUR OFFICE. WE WILL 
THEN SUBMIT THE ELECTRONIC RETURN TO THE IRS. DO NOT MAIL A 
PAPER COPY OF THE RETURN TO THE IRS. 

FOR YOUR CONVENIENCE, PLEASE USE THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE TO 
RETURN THE SIGNED COPY OF FORM 8879-EO OR PREFERABLY FAX IT TO 
(585)423-5966 BY MAY 15, 2019. 

700941 
04-01-17 



 
 

 
 

 

 

 

Form 8879-EO 

Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service 

IRS e-file Signature Authorization 
for an Exempt Organization 

For calendar year 2017, or fiscal year beginning JUL 1 , 2017, and ending JUN 30 
| Do not send to the IRS. Keep for your records. 

| Go to www.irs.gov/Form8879EO for the latest information. 

, 2018 

 

2017 
Name of exempt organization 

SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY 
CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

Employer identification number 

 
Name and title of officer 
JOHN CLEMENTE 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
Part I Type of Return and Return Information (Whole Dollars Only) 

Check the box for the return for which you are using this Form 8879-EO and enter the applicable amount, if any, from the return. If you check the box 
on line 1a, 2a, 3a, 4a, or 5a, below, and the amount on that line for the return being filed with this form was blank, then leave line 1b, 2b, 3b, 4b, or 5b, 
whichever is applicable, blank (do not enter -0-). But, if you entered -0- on the return, then enter -0- on the applicable line below. Do not complete more 
than 1 line in Part I. 

1a Form 990 check here | X b Total revenue, if any (Form 990, Part VIII, column (A), line 12)~~~~~~~ 1b 4,751,906. 
2a Form 990-EZ check here | b Total revenue, if any (Form 990-EZ, line 9) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 2b 

3a Form 1120-POL check here | b Total tax (Form 1120-POL, line 22) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 3b 

4a Form 990-PF check here | b Tax based on investment income (Form 990-PF, Part VI, line 5) ~~~ 4b 

5a Form 8868 check here | b Balance Due (Form 8868, line 3c) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 5b 

Part II Declaration and Signature Authorization of Officer 
Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I am an officer of the above organization and that I have examined a copy of the organization's 2017 
electronic return and accompanying schedules and statements and to the best of my knowledge and belief, they are true, correct, and complete. I 
further declare that the amount in Part I above is the amount shown on the copy of the organization's electronic return. I consent to allow my 
intermediate service provider, transmitter, or electronic return originator (ERO) to send the organization's return to the IRS and to receive from the IRS 
(a) an acknowledgement of receipt or reason for rejection of the transmission, (b) the reason for any delay in processing the return or refund, and (c) 
the date of any refund. If applicable, I authorize the U.S. Treasury and its designated Financial Agent to initiate an electronic funds withdrawal (direct 
debit) entry to the financial institution account indicated in the tax preparation software for payment of the organization's federal taxes owed on this 
return, and the financial institution to debit the entry to this account. To revoke a payment, I must contact the U.S. Treasury Financial Agent at 
1-888-353-4537 no later than 2 business days prior to the payment (settlement) date. I also authorize the financial institutions involved in the 
processing of the electronic payment of taxes to receive confidential information necessary to answer inquiries and resolve issues related to the 
payment. I have selected a personal identification number (PIN) as my signature for the organization's electronic return and, if applicable, the 
organization's consent to electronic funds withdrawal. 

Officer's PIN: check one box only 

X MENGEL, METZGER, BARR & CO. LLP 12000I authorize to enter my PIN 

ERO firm name Enter five numbers, but 
do not enter all zeros 

as my signature on the organization's tax year 2017 electronically filed return. If I have indicated within this return that a copy of the return 
is being filed with a state agency(ies) regulating charities as part of the IRS Fed/State program, I also authorize the aforementioned ERO to 
enter my PIN on the return's disclosure consent screen. 

As an officer of the organization, I will enter my PIN as my signature on the organization's tax year 2017 electronically filed return. If I have 
indicated within this return that a copy of the return is being filed with a state agency(ies) regulating charities as part of the IRS Fed/State 
program, I will enter my PIN on the return's disclosure consent screen. 

Officer's signature | Date | 

Part III Certification and Authentication 

ERO's EFIN/PIN. Enter your six-digit electronic filing identification 

number (EFIN) followed by your five-digit self-selected PIN. 
Do not enter all zeros 

I certify that the above numeric entry is my PIN, which is my signature on the 2017 electronically filed return for the organization indicated above. I 
confirm that I am submitting this return in accordance with the requirements of Pub. 4163, Modernized e-File (MeF) Information for Authorized IRS 
e-file Providers for Business Returns. 

ERO's signature | JACQUELINE B. LEE, CPA Date | 05/02/19 

ERO Must Retain This Form - See Instructions 
Do Not Submit This Form to the IRS Unless Requested To Do So 

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see instructions. Form 8879-EO (2017)

723051 10-11-17 

13100502 781764 SBC8990 2017.05050 SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY CHART SBC89901 



  

 
 
 
 

 
     

   
       

       

 

 

   

Form 990 Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax 
Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations) 

 

2017 
Department of the Treasury | Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public. Open to Public 
Internal Revenue Service | Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection 

A For the 2017 calendar year, or tax year beginning JUL 1, 2017 and ending JUN 30, 2018 
B Check if 

applicable: 

Address 
change 
Name 
change 
Initial 
return 

Final 
return/ 
termin-
ated 

Amended 
return 
Applica-
tion 
pending 

C Name of organization 
SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY 
CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

D Employer identification number 

Doing business as 

Number and street (or P.O. box if mail is not delivered to street address) 
730 CONCOURSE VILLAGE W.,TOWER B 

Room/suite E Telephone number 
 

City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code 
BRONX, NY 10451 

4,751,906.G Gross receipts $ 

H(a) Is this a group return 
Xfor subordinates? ~~ Yes No 

H(b) Are all subordinates included? Yes No 

If "No," attach a list. (see instructions) 

H(c) Group exemption number | 

JOHN CLEMENTEF Name and address of principal officer: 
SAME AS C ABOVE 

XI Tax-exempt status: 501(c)(3) 501(c) ( ) § (insert no.) 4947(a)(1) or 527
WWW.SOUTHBRONXCOMMUNITY.ORG/J Website: | 

XK Form of organization: Corporation Trust Association Other | 2015L Year of formation: NYM State of legal domicile:

Part I Summary 

A
c

ti
vi

ti
e

s
 &

 G
o

ve
rn

a
n

c
e SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY CHARTER1 Briefly describe the organization's mission or most significant activities: 

HIGH SCHOOL PROMOTES STUDENT EXCELLENCE THROUGH AN EMPHASIS ON 
2 Check this box | if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets. 

53 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 3 
54 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1b) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 4 

325 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2017 (Part V, line 2a) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 5 
76 Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 6 

0.7 a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C), line 12 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 7a 
0.b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, line 34 ���������������������� 7b 

R
e

ve
n

u
e 8 Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line 1h) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

9 Program service revenue (Part VIII, line 2g) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

10 Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), lines 3, 4, and 7d) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

11 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8c, 9c, 10c, and 11e) ~~~~~~~~ 

12 Total revenue - add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) ��� 

Prior Year Current Year 
540,239. 744,126. 

1,953,374. 4,007,671. 
146. 109. 
0. 0. 

2,493,759. 4,751,906. 

E
x
p

e
n

s
e

s
 

13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3) ~~~~~~~~~~~ 

14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5-10) ~~~ 

16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11e)~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
0.b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) | 

17 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f-24e) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) ~~~~~~~ 

19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from line 12 ���������������� 

0. 0. 
0. 0. 

1,489,396. 2,486,647. 
0. 0. 

872,692. 1,434,001. 
2,362,088. 3,920,648. 
131,671. 831,258. 

N
et

 A
ss

et
s 

or
Fu

nd
 B

al
an

ce
s

20 Total assets (Part X, line 16) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

21 Total liabilities (Part X, line 26) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

22 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from line 20 �������������� 

Beginning of Current Year End of Year 
576,666. 1,195,747. 
397,017. 184,840. 
179,649. 1,010,907. 

Part II Signature Block 
Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is 

true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge. 

Signature of officer Date =Sign 
JOHN CLEMENTE, EXECUTIVE DIRECTORHere 
Type or print name and title = 

Date PTINCheckPrint/Type preparer's name Preparer's signature 

Paid JACQUELINE B. LEE, CPA JACQUELINE B. LEE, C05/02/19 if self-employed 

Firm's name MENGEL, METZGER, BARR & CO. LLPPreparer Firm's EIN 9
Firm's address 100 CHESTNUT STREET, SUITE 1200Use Only 99 ROCHESTER, NY 14604 Phone no  

XMay the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see instructions) ��������������������� Yes No 

732001 11-28-17 LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. Form 990 (2017) 
SEE SCHEDULE O FOR ORGANIZATION MISSION STATEMENT CONTINUATION 
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SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY 
CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL Form 990 (2017) Page 2 

Part III Statement of Program Service Accomplishments 
XCheck if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part III ���������������������������� 

Briefly describe the organization's mission: 
SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL PROMOTES STUDENT EXCELLENCE 
THROUGH AN EMPHASIS ON ACADEMIC, PERSONAL AND PROFESSIONAL SKILLS IN A 
SUPPORTIVE AND RESPONSIVE LEARNING ENVIRONMENT. SBC STUDENTS GRADUATE 
WITH A POSITIVE SENSE OF SELF, READY TO DESIGN AND REALIZE THEIR 

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the 
Xprior Form 990 or 990-EZ? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ Yes No 

If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O. 
X3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services?~~~~~~ Yes No 

If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O. 

4 Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses. 

Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, the total expenses, and 

revenue, if any, for each program service reported. 

4a (Code: ) (Expenses $ 3,396,552. including grants of $ ) ( Revenue $ 4,007,671. ) 
TO SUPPORT THE EFFORTS AND MISSION OF SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY CHARTER 
HIGH SCHOOL. THE SCHOOL OFFICIALLY OPENED ITS DOORS TO STUDENTS IN THE 
FALL OF 2016. THE SCHOOL CURRENTLY HAS 283 STUDENTS COVERING GRADES 9 
THROUGH 11. 

4b (Code: ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) ( Revenue $ ) 

4c (Code: ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) ( Revenue $ ) 

4d Other program services (Describe in Schedule O.) 

(Expenses $ including grants of $ ) ( Revenue $ ) 

4e Total program service expenses | 3,396,552. 
Form 990 (2017) 
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SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY 
CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL Form 990 (2017) Page 3 

Yes No 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

Section 501(c)(3) organizations. 

a 

b 

c 

d 

e 

f 

a 

b 

11a 

11b 

11c 

11d 

11e 

11f 

12a 

12b 

13 

14a 

14b 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

a 

b 

If "Yes," complete Schedule A 
Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors 

If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part I 

If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part II 

If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part III 

If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part I 

If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part II 
If "Yes," complete 

Schedule D, Part III 

If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IV 

If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part V 

If "Yes," complete Schedule D, 
Part VI 

If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VII 

If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VIII 

If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IX 
If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X 

If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X 
If "Yes," complete 

Schedule D, Parts XI and XII 

If "Yes," and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI and XII is optional 
If "Yes," complete Schedule E 

If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts I and IV 

If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts II and IV 

If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts III and IV 

If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part I 

If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part II 
If "Yes," 

complete Schedule G, Part III 

Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Is the organization required to complete ? 

Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to candidates for 

public office? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

 Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h) election in effect 

during the tax year? 

Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues, assessments, or 

similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-19? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the right to 

provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? 

Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space, 

the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? 

Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a custodian for 

amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotiation services? 

Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in temporarily restricted endowments, permanent 

endowments, or quasi-endowments? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is "Yes," then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, VII, VIII, IX, or X 

as applicable. 

Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did the organization report an amount for investments - other securities in Part X, line 12 that is 5% or more of its total 

assets reported in Part X, line 16? 

Did the organization report an amount for investments - program related in Part X, line 13 that is 5% or more of its total 

assets reported in Part X, line 16? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15 that is 5% or more of its total assets reported in 

Part X, line 16? 

Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~ 

Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses 

the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? 

Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? 

~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? 

~~~~~ 

Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii)? 

Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising, business, 

investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments valued at $100,000 

or more? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for any 

foreign organization? 

Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other assistance to 

or for foreign individuals? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on Part IX, 

column (A), lines 6 and 11e? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part VIII, lines 

1c and 8a? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a? 

����������������������������������������������� 

Form  (2017) 

Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules 

990 

X 
X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 
X 

X 

X 

X 
X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 
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SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY 
CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL Form 990 (2017) Page 4 

Part IV (continued)Checklist of Required Schedules 

Yes No 
XIf "Yes," complete Schedule H20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 20a 

b If "Yes" to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return? ~~~~~~~~~~ 20b 

21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or 
XIf "Yes," complete Schedule I, Parts I and IIdomestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 21 

22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on 
XIf "Yes," complete Schedule I, Parts I and IIIPart IX, column (A), line 2? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 22 

23 Did the organization answer "Yes" to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the organization's current 
If "Yes," completeand former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? 

XSchedule J ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 23 

24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000 as of the 
If "Yes," answer lines 24b through 24d and completelast day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 2002? 

XSchedule K. If "No", go to line 25a ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 24a 

b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? ~~~~~~~~~~~ 24b 

c Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year to defease 

any tax-exempt bonds? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 24c 

d Did the organization act as an "on behalf of" issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year?~~~~~~~~~~~ 24d 

25a Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit 
XIf "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part Itransaction with a disqualified person during the year? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 25a 

b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior year, and 
If "Yes," completethat the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? 

XSchedule L, Part I ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 25b 

26 Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5, 6, or 22 for receivables from or payables to any current or 
If "Yes,"former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, highest compensated employees, or disqualified persons? 

Xcomplete Schedule L, Part II ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 26 

27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, director, trustee, key employee, substantial 

contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlled entity or family member 
XIf "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IIIof any of these persons? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 27 

28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L, Part IV 

instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions): 
XIf "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IVa A current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? ~~~~~~~~~~~ 28a 
XIf "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IVb A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? ~~ 28b 

c An entity of which a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee (or a family member thereof) was an officer, 
XIf "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IVdirector, trustee, or direct or indirect owner? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 28c 
XIf "Yes," complete Schedule M29 Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? ~~~~~~~~~ 29 

30 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified conservation 
XIf "Yes," complete Schedule Mcontributions? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 30 

31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? 
XIf "Yes," complete Schedule N, Part I ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 31 

If "Yes," complete32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? 
XSchedule N, Part II ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 32 

33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations 
XIf "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part Isections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-3? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 33 

If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part II, III, or IV, and34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? 
XPart V, line 1 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 34 
X35a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 35a 

b If "Yes" to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled entity 
If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 35b 

36 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related organization? 
XIf "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 36 

37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization 
XIf "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part VIand that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? ~~~~~~~~ 37 

38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and 19? 
XNote. All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O ������������������������������� 38 

Form 990 (2017) 
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SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY 
CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL Form 990 (2017) Page 5 

Part V Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance 
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V ��������������������������� 

Yes No 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

a 

b 

c 

1a 

1b 

1c 

a 

b 

2a 

Note. 

2b 

3a 

3b 

4a 

5a 

5b 

5c 

6a 

6b 

7a 

7b 

7c 

7e 

7f 

7g 

7h 

8 

9a 

9b 

a 

b 

a 

b 

a 

b 

c 

a 

b 

Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c). 

a 

b 

c 

d 

e 

f 

g 

h 

7d 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. 

Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. 

a 

b 

Section 501(c)(7) organizations. 

a 

b 

10a 

10b 

Section 501(c)(12) organizations. 

a 

b 

11a 

11b 

a 

b 

Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. 12a 

12b 

Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers. 

Note. 

a 

b 

c 

a 

b 

13a 

13b 

13c 

14a 

14b 

e-file 

If "No," to line 3b, provide an explanation in Schedule O 

If "No," provide an explanation in Schedule O 

Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods and services provided to the payor? 

Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable ~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable ~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable gaming 

(gambling) winnings to prize winners? ������������������������������������������� 

Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax Statements, 

filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return ~~~~~~~~~~ 

If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? 

If the sum of lines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to (see instructions) 

~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? 

If "Yes," has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~ 

At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over, a 

financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)?~~~~~~~ 

If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country: 

See instructions for filing requirements for FinCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR). 

Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? 

Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~ 

If "Yes," to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the organization solicit 

any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? 

If "Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts 

were not tax deductible? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

If "Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? 

Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was required 

to file Form 8282? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

���������������������������������������������������� 

If "Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year 

Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? 

If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required? 

If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C? 

~ 

Did a donor advised fund maintained by the 

sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 4966? 

Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Enter: 

Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIII, line 12 

Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club facilities 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~ 

Enter: 

Gross income from members or shareholders 

Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources against 

amounts due or received from them.) 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041? 

If "Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year ������ 

Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state?

 See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O. 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which the 

organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans 

Enter the amount of reserves on hand 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year? 

If "Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

���������� 

J 

0 
0 

32 
X 

X 
X 

X 

X 
X 

X 

X 

X 

X 
X 

X 

Form 990 (2017) 
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SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY 
CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL Form 990 (2017) Page 7 

Part VII Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated 
Employees, and Independent Contractors 
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VII ��������������������������� 

Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees 

1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year. 

¥ List all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of compensation. 
Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid. 

¥ List all of the organization's current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of "key employee." 
¥ List the organization's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee) who received report-

able compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the organization and any related organizations. 

¥ List all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000 of 
reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations. 

¥ List all of the organization's former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the organization, 
more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations. 

List persons in the following order: individual trustees or directors; institutional trustees; officers; key employees; highest compensated employees; 
and former such persons. 

Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee. 

(A) 

Name and Title 

(B) 

Average 
hours per 

week 
(list any 

hours for 
related 

organizations 
below 
line) 

(C) 
Position 

(do not check more than one 
box, unless person is both an 
officer and a director/trustee) 

(D) 

Reportable 
compensation 

from 
the 

organization 
(W-2/1099-MISC) 

(E) 

Reportable 
compensation 
from related 

organizations 
(W-2/1099-MISC) 

(F) 

Estimated 
amount of 

other 
compensation 

from the 
organization 
and related 

organizations

In
di

vi
du

al
 tr

us
te

e 
or

 d
ire

ct
or

In
st

itu
tio

na
l t

ru
st

ee

O
ffi

ce
r

Ke
y 

em
pl

oy
ee

H
ig

he
st

 c
om

pe
ns

at
ed

em
pl

oy
ee

Fo
rm

er
(1) ALVAREZ SYMONETTE 
CHAIR 

1.00 
X X 0. 0. 0. 

(2) MICHAEL BUSCH 
VICE CHAIR 

1.00 
X X 0. 0. 0. 

(3) PAUL ORTIZ 
TRUSTEE 

1.00 
X 0. 0. 0. 

(4) REMA DAVIS 
SECRETARY 

1.00 
X X 0. 0. 0. 

(5) KATE DEL PRIORE 
TREASURER 

1.00 
X X 0. 0. 0. 

(6) JOHN CLEMENTE 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AS OF 7/1/2018 

40.00 
X 123,413. 0. 30,908. 

(7) HARVEY CHISM JR 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR UNTIL 6/30/18 

40.00 
X 129,372. 0. 32,576. 

(8) NATALIE FERRELL 
CO-FOUNDER & YOUTH DEVELOPMENT DIREC 

40.00 
X 118,877. 0. 29,778. 

732007 11-28-17 Form 990 (2017) 
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SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY 
CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL Form 990 (2017) Page 8 

Part VII Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued) 

(A) 

Name and title 

(B) 

Average 
hours per 

week 
(list any 

hours for 
related 

organizations 
below 
line) 

(C) 
Position 

(do not check more than one 
box, unless person is both an 
officer and a director/trustee) 

(D) 

Reportable 
compensation 

from 
the 

organization 
(W-2/1099-MISC) 

(E) 

Reportable 
compensation 
from related 

organizations 
(W-2/1099-MISC) 

(F) 

Estimated 
amount of 

other 
compensation 

from the 
organization 
and related 

organizations

In
di

vi
du

al
 tr

us
te

e 
or

 d
ire

ct
or

In
st

itu
tio

na
l t

ru
st

ee

O
ffi

ce
r

Ke
y 

em
pl

oy
ee

H
ig

he
st

 c
om

pe
ns

at
ed

em
pl

oy
ee

Fo
rm

er
 

1b Sub-total~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ | 

c Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A ~~~~~~~~~~ | 

d Total (add lines 1b and 1c) ������������������������ | 

371,662. 0. 93,262. 
0. 0. 0. 

371,662. 0. 93,262. 
2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of reportable 

3compensation from the organization | 

3 

4 

5 

Did the organization list any former officer, director, or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee on 

line 1a? If "Yes," complete Schedule J for such individual ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the organization 

and related organizations greater than $150,000? If "Yes," complete Schedule J for such individual~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual for services 

rendered to the organization? If "Yes," complete Schedule J for such person ������������������������ 

Yes No 

3 X 

4 X 

5 X 
Section B. Independent Contractors 

Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of compensation from 

the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year. 

(A) 
Name and business address 

(B) 
Description of services 

(C) 
Compensation 

BORICUA COLLEGE 
890 WASHINGTON AVENUE, BRONX, NY 10451 RENT 488,288. 
CHARTER TECHNOLOGY SOLUTIONS 
129 20TH STREET FL 2 , BROOKLYN, NY 11232 

TECHNOLOGY 
CONSULTING SERVICES 134,296. 

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than 
2$100,000 of compensation from the organization | 

Form 990 (2017) 
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SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY 
CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL Form 990 (2017) Page 9 

Part VIII Statement of Revenue 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIII ������������������������� 

Noncash contributions included in lines 1a-1f: $ 

Total revenue. 

(A) (B) (C) (D) 

1 a 

b 

c 

d 

e 

f 

g 

h 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

a 

b 

c 

d 

e 

f

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
, 
G

if
ts

, 
G

ra
n

ts
a

n
d

 O
th

e
r 

S
im

il
a

r 
A

m
o

u
n

ts

Total. 

Business Code 

a 

b 

c 

d 

e 

f 

g 

2

P
ro

g
ra

m
 S

e
rv

ic
e

R
e

ve
n

u
e

 

Total. 

3 

4 

5 

6 a 

b 

c 

d 

a 

b 

c 

d 

7 

a 

b 

c 

8 

a 

b 

9 a 

b 

c 

a 

b 

10 a 

b 

c 

a 

b 

Business Code 

11 a 

b 

c 

d 

e Total. 

O
th

e
r 

R
e

ve
n

u
e

 

12 

Revenue excluded 
from tax under 

sections 
512 - 514 

All other contributions, gifts, grants, and 

similar amounts not included above 

See instructions. 

Total revenue Related or 
exempt function 

revenue 

Unrelated 
business 
revenue 

Federated campaigns 

Membership dues 

~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~ 

Fundraising events 

Related organizations 

~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~ 

Government grants (contributions) 

~~ 

Add lines 1a-1f ����������������� | 

All other program service revenue ~~~~~ 

Add lines 2a-2f ����������������� | 

Investment income (including dividends, interest, and 

other similar amounts) 

Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ | 

| 

Royalties ����������������������� | 

(i) Real (ii) Personal 

Gross rents 

Less: rental expenses 

Rental income or (loss) 

Net rental income or (loss) 

~~~~~~~ 

~~~ 

~~ 

�������������� | 

Gross amount from sales of 

assets other than inventory 

(i) Securities (ii) Other 

Less: cost or other basis 

and sales expenses 

Gain or (loss) 

~~~ 

~~~~~~~ 

Net gain or (loss) ������������������� | 

Gross income from fundraising events (not 

including $ of 

contributions reported on line 1c). See 

Part IV, line 18 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Less: direct expenses~~~~~~~~~~ 

Net income or (loss) from fundraising events ����� | 

Gross income from gaming activities. See 

Part IV, line 19 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Less: direct expenses 

Net income or (loss) from gaming activities 

~~~~~~~~~ 

������ | 

Gross sales of inventory, less returns 

and allowances ~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Less: cost of goods sold 

Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory 

~~~~~~~~ 

������ | 

Miscellaneous Revenue 

All other revenue ~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Add lines 11a-11d ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ | 

|������������� 

450,414. 

293,712. 
17,119. 

744,126. 

STATE AND LOCAL PER PU 611110 4,007,671.4,007,671. 

4,007,671. 

109. 109. 

4,751,906.4,007,671. 0. 109. 
 Form 990 (2017) 
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SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY 
CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL Form 990 (2017) Page 10 

Part IX Statement of Functional Expenses 
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A). 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX �������������������������� 
Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, 

7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII. 

(A) 
Total expenses 

(B) 
Program service 

expenses 

(C) 
Management and 
general expenses 

(D) 
Fundraising 
expenses 

1 Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations 

and domestic governments. See Part IV, line 21 ~ 

2 Grants and other assistance to domestic 

individuals. See Part IV, line 22 ~~~~~~~ 

3 Grants and other assistance to foreign 

organizations, foreign governments, and foreign 

individuals. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16 ~~~ 

4 Benefits paid to or for members ~~~~~~~ 

5 Compensation of current officers, directors, 

trustees, and key employees ~~~~~~~~ 

6 Compensation not included above, to disqualified 

persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and 

persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) ~~~ 

7 Other salaries and wages ~~~~~~~~~~ 

8 Pension plan accruals and contributions (include 

section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions) 

9 Other employee benefits ~~~~~~~~~~ 

10 Payroll taxes ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

11 Fees for services (non-employees): 

a Management ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

b Legal ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

c Accounting ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

d Lobbying ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

e Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17 

f Investment management fees ~~~~~~~~ 

g Other. (If line 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25, 

column (A) amount, list line 11g expenses on Sch O.) 

12 Advertising and promotion ~~~~~~~~~ 

13 Office expenses~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

14 Information technology ~~~~~~~~~~~ 

15 Royalties ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

16 Occupancy ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

17 Travel ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses 

for any federal, state, or local public officials 

19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings ~~ 

20 Interest ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

21 Payments to affiliates ~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization ~~ 

23 Insurance ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

24 Other expenses. Itemize expenses not covered 
above. (List miscellaneous expenses in line 24e. If line 
24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column (A) 
amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule O.) 
STUDENT SERVICESa 
SUPPLIES/MATERIALSb 
STAFF DEVELOPMENTc 
OTHERd 

e All other expenses 

25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e

319,634. 204,566. 115,068. 

1,733,559. 1,612,274. 121,285. 

14,161. 12,643. 1,518. 
264,490. 252,821. 11,669. 
154,803. 137,775. 17,028. 

11,440. 11,440. 
124,476. 124,476. 

129,050. 115,216. 13,834. 
5,355. 4,781. 574. 
5,282. 4,716. 566. 
6,512. 5,814. 698. 

741,091. 661,646. 79,445. 

72,128. 64,396. 7,732. 
28,408. 25,363. 3,045. 

163,644. 163,644. 
50,846. 45,395. 5,451. 
44,148. 39,415. 4,733. 
28,422. 25,375. 3,047. 
23,199. 20,712. 2,487. 

3,920,648. 3,396,552. 524,096. 0. 
26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if the organization 

reported in column (B) joint costs from a combined 

educational campaign and fundraising solicitation. 

Check here | if following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720) 

 Form 990 (2017) 
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SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY 
CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL Form 990 (2017) Page 11 

Part X Balance Sheet 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X ����������������������������� 

(A) (B) 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

32 

33 

34 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10c 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

a 

b 

10a 

10b 

A
s
s
e

ts
 

Total assets. 

L
ia

b
il
it

ie
s
 

Total liabilities. 

Organizations that follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here and 

complete lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34. 

27 

28 

29 

Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here 

and complete lines 30 through 34. 

30 

31 

32 

33 

34 

N
e

t 
A

s
s
e

ts
 o

r 
F

u
n

d
 B

a
la

n
c

e
s
 

Beginning of year End of year 

Cash - non-interest-bearing 

Savings and temporary cash investments 

Pledges and grants receivable, net 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Accounts receivable, net ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Loans and other receivables from current and former officers, directors, 

trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees. Complete 

Part II of Schedule L ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined under 

section 4958(f)(1)), persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B), and contributing 

employers and sponsoring organizations of section 501(c)(9) voluntary 

employees' beneficiary organizations (see instr). Complete Part II of Sch L ~~ 

Notes and loans receivable, net 

Inventories for sale or use 

Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other 

basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D 

Less: accumulated depreciation 

~~~ 

~~~~~~ 

Investments - publicly traded securities 

Investments - other securities. See Part IV, line 11 

Investments - program-related. See Part IV, line 11 

Intangible assets 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Other assets. See Part IV, line 11 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 34) ���������� 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Grants payable 

Deferred revenue 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Tax-exempt bond liabilities 

Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~ 

Loans and other payables to current and former officers, directors, trustees, 

key employees, highest compensated employees, and disqualified persons. 

Complete Part II of Schedule L ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties ~~~~~~ 

Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties ~~~~~~~~ 

Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third 

parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X of 

Schedule D ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Add lines 17 through 25 ������������������ 

| 

Unrestricted net assets 

Temporarily restricted net assets 

Permanently restricted net assets 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

| 

Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds 

Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund 

Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~ 

Total net assets or fund balances ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances ���������������� 

195,494. 217,939. 
25,003. 52,249. 
178,260. 130,928. 

29,871. 40,005. 

337,914. 
94,384. 96,371. 243,530. 

51,667. 511,096. 
576,666. 1,195,747. 
135,363. 184,840. 

261,654. 0. 

397,017. 184,840. 
X 

179,649. 1,010,907. 

179,649. 1,010,907. 
576,666. 1,195,747. 

Form 990 (2017) 

 

11 
 2017.05050 SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY CHART 





    

 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

SCHEDULE A 
Public Charity Status and Public Support(Form 990 or 990-EZ) 

Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section 2017 
4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust. 

Department of the Treasury Open to Public| Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. 
Internal Revenue Service Inspection| Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. 

Name of the organization Employer identification number 

(All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.Part I Reason for Public Charity Status 

SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY 
CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL  

The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.) 

1 A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i). 

2 X A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ).) 

3 A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). 

4 A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the hospital's name, 

city, and state: 

5 An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in 

section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part II.) 

6 A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v). 

7 An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public described in 

section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II.) 

8 A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II.) 

9 An agricultural research organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college 

or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or 

university: 

10 An organization that normally receives: (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross receipts from 

activities related to its exempt functions - subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 33 1/3% of its support from gross investment 

income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975. 

See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part III.) 

11 An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4). 

12 An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of one or 

more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3). Check the box in 

lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.

a Type I. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving 

the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the supporting 

organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B. 

b Type II. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having 

control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported 

organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C. 

c Type III functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with, 

its supported organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E. 

d Type III non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s) 

that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness 

requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V. 

e Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type I, Type II, Type III 

functionally integrated, or Type III non-functionally integrated supporting organization. 

f Enter the number of supported organizations ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

g Provide the following information about the supported organization(s). 
(i) Name of supported 

organization 

(ii) EIN (iii) Type of organization 
(described on lines 1-10 
above (see instructions)) 

(iv) Is the organization listed 
in your governing document? 

(v) Amount of monetary 

support (see instructions) 

(vi) Amount of other 

support (see instructions)Yes No 

Total 

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. 732021 10-06-17 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017 
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SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY 
CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017 Page 2 

Part II Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi) 
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part I or if the organization failed to qualify under Part III. If the organization 

fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part III.) 

Section A. Public Support 
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) | 

1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and 

membership fees received. (Do not 

include any "unusual grants.") ~~ 

2 Tax revenues levied for the organ-

ization's benefit and either paid to 

or expended on its behalf ~~~~ 

3 The value of services or facilities 

furnished by a governmental unit to 

the organization without charge ~

4 Total. Add lines 1 through 3 ~~~ 

5 The portion of total contributions 

by each person (other than a 

governmental unit or publicly 

supported organization) included 

on line 1 that exceeds 2% of the 

amount shown on line 11, 

column (f) ~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

6 Public support. Subtract line 5 from line 4. 

(a) 2013 (b) 2014 (c) 2015 (d) 2016 (e) 2017 (f) Total 

Section B. Total Support 
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) | (a) 2013 (b) 2014 (c) 2015 (d) 2016 

7 Amounts from line 4 ~~~~~~~ 

8 Gross income from interest, 

dividends, payments received on 

securities loans, rents, royalties, 

and income from similar sources ~ 

9 Net income from unrelated business 

activities, whether or not the 

business is regularly carried on ~ 

10 Other income. Do not include gain 

or loss from the sale of capital 

assets (Explain in Part VI.) ~~~~ 

11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10 

12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

(e) 2017 

12 

(f) Total 

13 First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3) 

organization, check this box and stop here ��������������������������������������������� | 
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage 

14 

15 

14 

15 

~~~~~~~~~~~~Public support percentage for 2017 (line 6, column (f) divided by line 11, column (f)) 

Public support percentage from 2016 Schedule A, Part II, line 14 

% 

%~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

16a 33 1/3% support test - 2017. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box and 

stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ | 

b 33 1/3% support test - 2016. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box 

and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ | 

17a 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2017. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is 10% or more, 

and if the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the organization 

meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ | 

b 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2016. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line 15 is 10% or 

more, and if the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the 

organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ~~~~~~~~ | 

18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see instructions ��� | 

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017 
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SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY 
CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017 Page 4 

Part IV Supporting Organizations 
(Complete only if you checked a box in line 12 on Part I. If you checked 12a of Part I, complete Sections A 

and B. If you checked 12b of Part I, complete Sections A and C. If you checked 12c of Part I, complete 

Sections A, D, and E. If you checked 12d of Part I, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.) 

Section A. All Supporting Organizations 

1 

2 

3a 

b 

c 

4a 

b 

c 

5a 

b 

c 

6 

7 

8 

9a 

b 

c 

10a 

b 

Are all of the organization's supported organizations listed by name in the organization's governing 

documents? If "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by 
class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain. 

Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status 

under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported 
organization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2). 

Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6)? If "Yes," answer 
(b) and (c) below. 

Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) and 

satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? If "Yes," describe in Part VI when and how the 
organization made the determination. 

Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B) 

purposes? If "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use. 

Was any supported organization not organized in the United States ("foreign supported organization")? If 
"Yes," and if you checked 12a or 12b in Part I, answer (b) and (c) below. 

Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign 

supported organization? If "Yes," describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion 
despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations.

Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination 

under sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization used 
to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B) 
purposes. 

Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? If "Yes," 
answer (b) and (c) below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN 
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (ii) the reasons for each such action; 
(iii) the authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action 
was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document). 

Type I or Type II only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already 

designated in the organization's organizing document? 

Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization's control? 

Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to 

anyone other than (i) its supported organizations, (ii) individuals that are part of the charitable class 

benefited by one or more of its supported organizations, or (iii) other supporting organizations that also 

support or benefit one or more of the filing organization's supported organizations? If "Yes," provide detail in 

Part VI. 

Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor 

(defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity with 

regard to a substantial contributor? If "Yes," complete Part I of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ). 

Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described in line 7? 
If "Yes," complete Part I of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ). 

Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more 

disqualified persons as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations described 

in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 

Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined in line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which 

the supporting organization had an interest? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 

Did a disqualified person (as defined in line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit 

from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 

Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section 

4943(f) (regarding certain Type II supporting organizations, and all Type III non-functionally integrated 

supporting organizations)? If "Yes," answer 10b below. 

Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to 
determine whether the organization had excess business holdings.) 

Yes No 

1 

2 

3a 

3b 

3c 

4a 

4b 

4c 

5a 

5b 

5c 

6 

7 

8 

9a 

9b 

9c 

10a 

10b 

732024 10-06-17 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017 
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SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY 
CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017 Page 6 

Part V Type III Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations 
1 Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (explain in Part VI.) See instructions. All 

other Type III non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E. 

Section A - Adjusted Net Income (A) Prior Year 
(B) Current Year 

(optional) 

1 Net short-term capital gain 1 

2 Recoveries of prior-year distributions 2 

3 Other gross income (see instructions) 3 

4 Add lines 1 through 3 4 

5 Depreciation and depletion 5 

6 Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or 

collection of gross income or for management, conservation, or 

maintenance of property held for production of income (see instructions) 6 

7 Other expenses (see instructions) 7 

8 Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4) 8 

Section B - Minimum Asset Amount (A) Prior Year 
(B) Current Year 

(optional) 

1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see 

instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year): 

a Average monthly value of securities 1a 

b Average monthly cash balances 1b 

c Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets 1c 

d Total (add lines 1a, 1b, and 1c) 1d 

e Discount claimed for blockage or other 

factors (explain in detail in Part VI): 

2 Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets 2 

3 Subtract line 2 from line 1d 3 

4 Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 1-1/2% of line 3 (for greater amount, 

see instructions) 4 

5 Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3) 5 

6 Multiply line 5 by .035 6 

7 Recoveries of prior-year distributions 7 

8 Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6) 8 

Section C - Distributable Amount Current Year 

1 Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, Column A) 1 

2 Enter 85% of line 1 2 

3 Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, Column A) 3 

4 Enter greater of line 2 or line 3 4 

5 Income tax imposed in prior year 5 

6 Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to 

emergency temporary reduction (see instructions) 6 

Check here if the current year is the organization's first as a non-functionally integrated Type III supporting organization (see 

instructions). 

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017 

 

18 
 2017.05050 SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY CHART 



SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY 
CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017 Page 7 

Part V Type III Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (continued) 
Section D - Distributions Current Year 

1 Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes 

2 Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported 

organizations, in excess of income from activity 

3 Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations 

4 Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets 

5 Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required) 

6 Other distributions (describe in Part VI). See instructions.

7 Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6. 

8 Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive 

(provide details in Part VI). See instructions. 

9 Distributable amount for 2017 from Section C, line 6 

10 Line 8 amount divided by line 9 amount 

Section E - Distribution Allocations (see instructions) 

(i) 

Excess Distributions 

(ii) 
Underdistributions 

Pre-2017 

(iii) 
Distributable 

Amount for 2017 

1 Distributable amount for 2017 from Section C, line 6 

2 Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2017 (reason-

able cause required- explain in Part VI). See instructions. 

3 Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2017 

a 

b From 2013 

c From 2014 

d From 2015 

e From 2016 

f Total of lines 3a through e 

g Applied to underdistributions of prior years 

h Applied to 2017 distributable amount 

i Carryover from 2012 not applied (see instructions) 

j Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from 3f. 

4 Distributions for 2017 from Section D, 

line 7: $ 

a Applied to underdistributions of prior years 

b Applied to 2017 distributable amount 

c Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from 4. 

5 Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2017, if 

any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result greater 

than zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions. 

6 Remaining underdistributions for 2017. Subtract lines 3h 

and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in 

Part VI. See instructions. 

7 Excess distributions carryover to 2018. Add lines 3j 

and 4c. 

8 Breakdown of line 7: 

a Excess from 2013 

b Excess from 2014 

c Excess from 2015 

d Excess from 2016 

e Excess from 2017 

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017 
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SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY 
CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017 Page 8 

Part VI Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part II, line 10; Part II, line 17a or 17b; Part III, line 12; 
Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3c, 4b, 4c, 5a, 6, 9a, 9b, 9c, 11a, 11b, and 11c; Part IV, Section B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C, 
line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b, 3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V, 
Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E, lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information. 
(See instructions.) 

 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017 
20 

 2017.05050 SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY CHART 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X 

Schedule B 
(Form 990, 990-EZ, 
or 990-PF) 
Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service 

Schedule of Contributors 
| Attach to Form 990, Form 990-EZ, or Form 990-PF. 

| Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. 

 

2017 
Name of the organization 

SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY 
CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

Employer identification number 

 
Organization type (check one): 

Filers of: Section:

X 3Form 990 or 990-EZ 501(c)( ) (enter number) organization 

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust not treated as a private foundation 

527 political organization 

Form 990-PF 501(c)(3) exempt private foundation 

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust treated as a private foundation 

501(c)(3) taxable private foundation 

Check if your organization is covered by the General Rule or a Special Rule. 

Note: Only a section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) organization can check boxes for both the General Rule and a Special Rule. See instructions. 

General Rule 

For an organization filing Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF that received, during the year, contributions totaling $5,000 or more (in money or 

property) from any one contributor. Complete Parts I and II. See instructions for determining a contributor's total contributions. 

Special Rules 

For an organization described in section 501(c)(3) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that met the 33 1/3% support test of the regulations under 

sections 509(a)(1) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi), that checked Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ), Part II, line 13, 16a, or 16b, and that received from 

any one contributor, during the year, total contributions of the greater of (1) $5,000; or (2) 2% of the amount on (i) Form 990, Part VIII, line 1h; 

or (ii) Form 990-EZ, line 1. Complete Parts I and II. 

For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one contributor, during the 
exclusivelyyear, total contributions of more than $1,000 for religious, charitable, scientific, literary, or educational purposes, or for 

the prevention of cruelty to children or animals. Complete Parts I, II, and III. 

For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one contributor, during the 
exclusivelyyear, contributions for religious, charitable, etc., purposes, but no such contributions totaled more than $1,000. If this box 

exclusivelyis checked, enter here the total contributions that were received during the year for an  religious, charitable, etc., 

purpose. Don't complete any of the parts unless the General Rule applies to this organization because it received nonexclusively 

religious, charitable, etc., contributions totaling $5,000 or more during the year ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ | $ 

Caution: An organization that isn't covered by the General Rule and/or the Special Rules doesn't file Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF), 

but it must answer "No" on Part IV, line 2, of its Form 990; or check the box on line H of its Form 990-EZ or on its Form 990-PF, Part I, line 2, to 

certify that it doesn't meet the filing requirements of Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF). 

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the instructions for Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF. Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2017) 





 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2017) Page 2 

Name of organization Employer identification number 
SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY 
CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL  

Part I Contributors (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part I if additional space is needed. 

(a) 

No. 

(b) 

Name, address, and ZIP + 4 

(c) 

Total contributions 

(d) 

Type of contribution 

7 SOUTHERN POVERTY LAW CENTER 

400 WASHINGTON AVE MONTGOMERY AVENUE 

MONTGOMERY, AL 36104 

$ 5,000. 

XPerson 

Payroll 

Noncash 

(Complete Part II for 
noncash contributions.) 

(a) 

No. 

(b) 

Name, address, and ZIP + 4 

(c) 

Total contributions 

(d) 

Type of contribution 

$ 

Person 

Payroll 

Noncash 

(Complete Part II for 
noncash contributions.) 

(a) 

No. 

(b) 

Name, address, and ZIP + 4 

(c) 

Total contributions 

(d) 

Type of contribution 

$ 

Person 

Payroll 

Noncash 

(Complete Part II for 
noncash contributions.) 

(a) 

No. 

(b) 

Name, address, and ZIP + 4 

(c) 

Total contributions 

(d) 

Type of contribution 

$ 

Person 

Payroll 

Noncash 

(Complete Part II for 
noncash contributions.) 

(a) 

No. 

(b) 

Name, address, and ZIP + 4 

(c) 

Total contributions 

(d) 

Type of contribution 

$ 

Person 

Payroll 

Noncash 

(Complete Part II for 
noncash contributions.) 

(a) 

No. 

(b) 

Name, address, and ZIP + 4 

(c) 

Total contributions 

(d) 

Type of contribution 

$ 

Person 

Payroll 

Noncash 

(Complete Part II for 
noncash contributions.) 

 Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2017) 
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Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2017) Page 3 
Name of organization Employer identification number 

SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY 
CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL  

Part II Noncash Property (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part II if additional space is needed. 

(a) 

No. 

from 

Part I 

(b) 

Description of noncash property given 

(c) 

FMV (or estimate) 

(See instructions.) 

(d) 

Date received 

6 
LIBRARY BOOKS, TEXTBOOKS, AND SOFTWARE 

$ 17,119. 05/01/18 

(a) 

No. 

from 

Part I 

(b) 

Description of noncash property given 

(c) 

FMV (or estimate) 

(See instructions.) 

(d) 

Date received 

$ 

(a) 

No. 

from 

Part I 

(b) 

Description of noncash property given 

(c) 

FMV (or estimate) 

(See instructions.) 

(d) 

Date received 

$ 

(a) 

No. 

from 

Part I 

(b) 

Description of noncash property given 

(c) 

FMV (or estimate) 

(See instructions.) 

(d) 

Date received 

$ 

(a) 

No. 

from 

Part I 

(b) 

Description of noncash property given 

(c) 

FMV (or estimate) 

(See instructions.) 

(d) 

Date received 

$ 

(a) 

No. 

from 

Part I 

(b) 

Description of noncash property given 

(c) 

FMV (or estimate) 

(See instructions.) 

(d) 

Date received 

$ 

723453 11-01-17 Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2017) 
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Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2017) Page 4 
Name of organization Employer identification number 

SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY 
CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL  

Exclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions to organizations described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) that total more than $1,000 for 
the year from any one contributor. Complete columns (a) through (e) and the following line entry. For organizations 

completing Part III, enter the total of exclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions of $1,000 or less for the year. (Enter this info. once.) | $ 

Part III 

Use duplicate copies of Part III if additional space is needed. 
(a) No. 
from 
Part I 

(b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held 

(e) Transfer of gift 

Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee 

(a) No. 
from 
Part I 

(b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held 

(e) Transfer of gift 

Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee 

(a) No. 
from 
Part I 

(b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held 

(e) Transfer of gift 

Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee 

(a) No. 
from 
Part I 

(b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held 

(e) Transfer of gift 

Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee 

 Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2017) 
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SCHEDULE D 
(Form 990) 

Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service 

Supplemental Financial Statements 
| Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, 

Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b. 
| Attach to Form 990. 

|Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. 
SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY 

 

2017 
Open to Public 
Inspection 

Name of the organization Employer identification number 
CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL  

Part I Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts.Complete if the 

organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 6. 

1 Total number at end of year ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts 

2 Aggregate value of contributions to (during year) ~~~~ 

3 Aggregate value of grants from (during year) ~~~~~~ 

4 Aggregate value at end of year ~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

5 Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds 

are the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control?~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ Yes No 

6 Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used only 

for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose conferring 

impermissible private benefit? �������������������������������������������� Yes No 

Part II Conservation Easements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 7. 

1 Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply). 

Preservation of land for public use (e.g., recreation or education) Preservation of a historically important land area 

Protection of natural habitat Preservation of a certified historic structure 

Preservation of open space 

2 Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation easement on the last 

Held at the End of the Tax Year 

2a

2b

2c

2d 

day of the tax year. 

a Total number of conservation easements ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

b Total acreage restricted by conservation easements ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

c Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included in (a) ~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

d Number of conservation easements included in (c) acquired after 7/25/06, and not on a historic structure 

listed in the National Register ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

3 Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the tax 

year | 

4 Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located | 

5 Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of 

violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements it holds? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ Yes No 

6 Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year 

| 

7 Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year 

| $ 

8 Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)(i) 

and section 170(h)(4)(B)(ii)? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ Yes No 

9 In Part XIII, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement, and balance sheet, and 

include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that describes the organization's accounting for 

conservation easements. 

Part III Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets. 
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 8. 

1a If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art, 

historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide, in Part XIII, 

the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items. 

b If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art, historical 

treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide the following amounts 

relating to these items: 

(i) Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ | $ 

(ii) Assets included in Form 990, Part X ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ | $ 

2 If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide 

the following amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 (ASC 958) relating to these items: 

a Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ | $ 

b Assets included in Form 990, Part X ����������������������������������� | $ 

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule D (Form 990) 2017 
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SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY 
CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL Schedule D (Form 990) 2017 Page 2 

Part III (continued)Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets 
Using the organization's acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its collection items 

(check all that apply): 

a Public exhibition d Loan or exchange programs 

b Scholarly research e Other 

c Preservation for future generations 

4 Provide a description of the organization's collections and explain how they further the organization's exempt purpose in Part XIII. 

5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets 

to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization's collection? ������������ Yes No 

Part IV Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or 
reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21. 

1a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not included 

on Form 990, Part X? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ Yes No 

b If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIII and complete the following table: 

c Beginning balance ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

d Additions during the year ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

e Distributions during the year ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

f Ending balance ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Amount 

1c 

1d 

1e 

1f 

2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability? ~~~~~ Yes No 

b If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIII. Check here if the explanation has been provided on Part XIII ������������� 

Part V Endowment Funds. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 10. 

1a Beginning of year balance ~~~~~~~ 

b Contributions ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

c Net investment earnings, gains, and losses 

d Grants or scholarships ~~~~~~~~~ 

e Other expenditures for facilities 

and programs ~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

f Administrative expenses ~~~~~~~~ 

g End of year balance ~~~~~~~~~~ 

(a) Current year (b) Prior year (c) Two years back (d) Three years back (e) Four years back 

2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as: 

a Board designated or quasi-endowment | % 

b Permanent endowment | % 

c Temporarily restricted endowment | % 

The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2c should equal 100%. 

3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the organization 

by: 

(i) unrelated organizations ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

(ii) related organizations ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

b If "Yes" on line 3a(ii), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R?~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Yes No 

3a(i) 

3a(ii) 

3b 

4 Describe in Part XIII the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds. 

Part VI Land, Buildings, and Equipment. 
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10. 

Description of property (a) Cost or other 
basis (investment) 

(b) Cost or other 
basis (other) 

(c) Accumulated 
depreciation 

(d) Book value 

1a Land ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

b Buildings ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

c Leasehold improvements ~~~~~~~~~~ 

d Equipment ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

e Other �������������������� 

188,133. 72,081. 116,052. 
149,781. 22,303. 127,478. 

Total. Add lines 1a through 1e. (Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), line 10c.)������������� | 243,530. 
Schedule D (Form 990) 2017 
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SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY 
CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL Schedule D (Form 990) 2017 Page 3 

Part VII Investments - Other Securities. 
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12. 

(including name of security) 

Total. 

(a) (b) (c) 

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

Description of security or category 

(Col. (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 12.) | 

Book value Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value 

Financial derivatives 

Closely-held equity interests 

Other 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~ 

(A) 

(B) 

(C) 

(D) 

(E) 

(F) 

(G) 

(H) 

Part VIII Investments - Program Related. 
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13. 

(a) Description of investment (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value 

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

(7) 

(8) 

(9) 

Total. (Col. (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 13.) | 

Part IX Other Assets. 
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15. 

(a) Description (b) Book value 

SECURITY DEPPOSIT(1) 511,096. 
(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

(7) 

(8) 

(9) 

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 15.) ���������������������������� | 511,096. 
Part X Other Liabilities. 

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X, line 25. 

1. (a) Description of liability (b) Book value 

(1) Federal income taxes 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

(7) 

(8) 

(9) 

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 25.) ����� | 

2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part XIII, provide the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that reports the 

organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740). Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part XIII 

Schedule D (Form 990) 2017 
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SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY 
CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL Schedule D (Form 990) 2017 Page 4 

Part XI Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return. 
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

1 

a 

b 

c 

d 

e 

2a 

2b 

2c 

2d 

2a 2d 2e 

32e 1 

a 

b 

c 

4a 

4b 

4a 4b 

3 4c. 

4c 

5(This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 12.) 

Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements 

Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12: 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 

Donated services and use of facilities 

Recoveries of prior year grants 

Other (Describe in Part XIII.) 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Add lines through ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Subtract line from line ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, but not on line 1: 

Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b 

Other (Describe in Part XIII.) 

~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Add lines and 

Total revenue. Add lines and 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

����������������� 

Part XII Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return. 

4,751,906. 

0. 
4,751,906. 

0. 
4,751,906. 

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

1 

a 

b 

c 

d 

e 

2a 

2b 

2c 

2d 

2a 2d 

2e 1 

2e 

3 

a 

b 

c 

4a 

4b 

4a 4b 

3 4c. 

4c 

5(This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 18.) 

Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements 

Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25: 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Donated services and use of facilities 

Prior year adjustments 

Other losses 

Other (Describe in Part XIII.) 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Add lines through 

Subtract line from line 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1: 

Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b 

Other (Describe in Part XIII.) 

~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Add lines and 

Total expenses. Add lines and 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

���������������� 

Part XIII Supplemental Information. 

3,920,648. 

0. 
3,920,648. 

0. 
3,920,648. 

Provide the descriptions required for Part II, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part III, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line 2; Part XI, 

lines 2d and 4b; and Part XII, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information. 

PART X, LINE 2: 

THE CHARTER SCHOOL IS A TAX-EXEMPT ORGANIZATION UNDER SECTION 501(C)(3) OF 

THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE AND APPLICABLE STATE REGULATIONS AND, 

ACCORDINGLY, IS EXEMPT FROM FEDERAL AND STATE TAXES ON INCOME. 

THE CHARTER SCHOOL FILES FORM 990 TAX RETURNS IN THE U.S. FEDERAL 

JURISDICTION. THE TAX RETURNS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 AND THE 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 ARE STILL SUBJECT TO POTENTIAL AUDIT BY THE IRS. 

MANAGEMENT OF THE CHARTER SCHOOL BELIEVES IT HAS NO MATERIAL UNCERTAIN TAX 

POSITIONS AND, ACCORDINGLY IT HAS NOT RECOGNIZED ANY LIABILITY FOR 

UNRECOGNIZED TAX BENEFITS. 

732054 10-09-17 Schedule D (Form 990) 2017 
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Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service | Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. 

(Form 990 or 990-EZ) | Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, 
Part IV, line 13, or Form 990-EZ, Part VI, line 48. 

Open to Public 
Inspection 

| Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. 

Employer identification number 

YES NO 

1 

2 

3 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

a 

b 

c 

d 

a 

b 

c 

d 

e 

f 

g 

h 

4a 

4b 

4c 

4d 

5a 

5b 

5c 

5d 

5e 

5f 

5g 

5h 

6a 

6b 

7 

6 

7 

a 

b 

Name of the organization 

Does the organization have a racially nondiscriminatory policy toward students by statement in its charter, bylaws, 

other governing instrument, or in a resolution of its governing body? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Does the organization include a statement of its racially nondiscriminatory policy toward students in all its brochures, 

catalogues, and other written communications with the public dealing with student admissions, programs, and scholarships? 

Has the organization publicized its racially nondiscriminatory policy through newspaper or broadcast media during the 

period of solicitation for students, or during the registration period if it has no solicitation program, in a way that makes 

the policy known to all parts of the general community it serves? If "Yes," please describe. If "No," please explain. 

If you need more space, use Part II ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Does the organization maintain the following? 

Records indicating the racial composition of the student body, faculty, and administrative staff? 

Records documenting that scholarships and other financial assistance are awarded on a racially nondiscriminatory basis? 

Copies of all catalogues, brochures, announcements, and other written communications to the public dealing with student 

admissions, programs, and scholarships? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Copies of all material used by the organization or on its behalf to solicit contributions? 

If you answered "No" to any of the above, please explain. If you need more space, use Part II. 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Does the organization discriminate by race in any way with respect to: 

Students' rights or privileges? 

Admissions policies? 

Employment of faculty or administrative staff? 

Scholarships or other financial assistance? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Educational policies? 

Use of facilities? 

Athletic programs? 

Other extracurricular activities? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

If you answered "Yes" to any of the above, please explain. If you need more space, use Part II. 

Does the organization receive any financial aid or assistance from a governmental agency? 

Has the organization's right to such aid ever been revoked or suspended? 

If you answered "Yes" on either line 6a or line 6b, explain on Part II. 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Does the organization certify that it has complied with the applicable requirements of sections 4.01 through 4.05 of 

Rev. Proc. 75-50, 1975-2 C.B. 587, covering racial nondiscrimination? If "No," explain on Part II �������������� 

SCHEDULE E 

Part I 

Schools 
2017 

SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY 
CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL  

X 

X 

X 
SBC'S NONDISCRIMINATION POLICY IS EXPRESSED ON THE ITS 
WEBSITE, ELECTRONIC APPLICATIONS AND VIA LISTINGS THROUGH THE 
NEW YORK CITY CHARTER SCHOOL CENTER 

X 
X 

X 
X 

AS OF YET, SBC HAS NOT RECEIVED OR ADMINISTERED SCHOLARSHIPS 
AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO FAMILIES. 

X 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 

X 
X 

X 
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017 
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SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY 
CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017 Page 2 

Part II Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part I, lines 3, 4d, 5h, 6b, and 7, as applicable. 

Also provide any other additional information. 

LINE 6 - EXPLANATION OF GOVERNMENT FINANCIAL AID: 

AS AN INDEPENDENT CHARTER SCHOOL, SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY CHARTER HIGH 

SCHOOL IS ELIGIBLE TO RECEIVE FUNDING AND GRANTS FROM USDOE, NYSED, AND 

LOCALLY FROM NYC DEPARTMENT OF YOUTH AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT. 

732062 10-06-17 Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017 
32 

 2017.05050 SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY CHART



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service 

For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest 
Compensated Employees 

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 23. 
Open to Public 

Inspection
Attach to Form 990. 

| Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. 
Employer identification number 

Yes No 

1a 

b 

1b 

2 

2 

3 

4 

a 

b 

c 

4a 

4b 

4c 

Only section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations must complete lines 5-9. 

5 

5a 

5b 

6a 

6b 

7 

8 

9 

a 

b 

6 

a 

b 

7 

8 

9 

| 
| 

Name of the organization 

Check the appropriate box(es) if the organization provided any of the following to or for a person listed on Form 990, 

Part VII, Section A, line 1a. Complete Part III to provide any relevant information regarding these items. 

First-class or charter travel 

Travel for companions 

Housing allowance or residence for personal use 

Payments for business use of personal residence 

Tax indemnification and gross-up payments 

Discretionary spending account 

Health or social club dues or initiation fees 

Personal services (such as, maid, chauffeur, chef) 

If any of the boxes on line 1a are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment or 

reimbursement or provision of all of the expenses described above? If "No," complete Part III to explain~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by all directors, 

trustees, and officers, including the CEO/Executive Director, regarding the items checked on line 1a? ~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Indicate which, if any, of the following the filing organization used to establish the compensation of the organization's 

CEO/Executive Director. Check all that apply. Do not check any boxes for methods used by a related organization to 

establish compensation of the CEO/Executive Director, but explain in Part III. 

Compensation committee 

Independent compensation consultant 

Form 990 of other organizations 

Written employment contract 

Compensation survey or study 

Approval by the board or compensation committee 

During the year, did any person listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, with respect to the filing 

organization or a related organization: 

Receive a severance payment or change-of-control payment? 

Participate in, or receive payment from, a supplemental nonqualified retirement plan? 

Participate in, or receive payment from, an equity-based compensation arrangement? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

If "Yes" to any of lines 4a-c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each item in Part III. 

For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation 

contingent on the revenues of: 

The organization? 

Any related organization? 

If "Yes" on line 5a or 5b, describe in Part III. 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation 

contingent on the net earnings of: 

The organization? 

Any related organization? 

If "Yes" on line 6a or 6b, describe in Part III. 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization provide any nonfixed payments 

not described on lines 5 and 6? If "Yes," describe in Part III 

Were any amounts reported on Form 990, Part VII, paid or accrued pursuant to a contract that was subject to the 

initial contract exception described in Regulations section 53.4958-4(a)(3)? If "Yes," describe in Part III 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~ 

If "Yes" on line 8, did the organization also follow the rebuttable presumption procedure described in 

Regulations section 53.4958-6(c)? ��������������������������������������������� 

SCHEDULE J 
(Form 990) 

Part I Questions Regarding Compensation 

Compensation Information 

2017 

SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY 
CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL  

X 
X 
X 

X 
X 
X 

X 
X 

X 
X 

X 

X 

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule J (Form 990) 2017 
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SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY 
CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL Schedule J (Form 990) 2017 Page 2 

Part II Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees. Use duplicate copies if additional space is needed. 

For each individual whose compensation must be reported on Schedule J, report compensation from the organization on row (i) and from related organizations, described in the instructions, on row (ii). 
Do not list any individuals that aren't listed on Form 990, Part VII. 

Note: The sum of columns (B)(i)-(iii) for each listed individual must equal the total amount of Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, applicable column (D) and (E) amounts for that individual. 

(A) Name and Title 

(B) Breakdown of W-2 and/or 1099-MISC compensation (C) Retirement and 
other deferred 
compensation 

(D) Nontaxable 
benefits 

(E) Total of columns 
(B)(i)-(D) 

(F) Compensation 
in column (B) 

reported as deferred 
on prior Form 990 

(i) Base 
compensation 

(ii) Bonus & 
incentive 

compensation 

(iii) Other 
reportable 

compensation 

(1) JOHN CLEMENTE 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AS OF 7/1/2018 

(i) 

(ii) 

123,413. 0. 0. 0. 30,908. 154,321. 0. 
0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 

(2) HARVEY CHISM JR 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR UNTIL 6/30/18 

(i) 

(ii) 

129,372. 0. 0. 0. 32,576. 161,948. 0. 
0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.

(i) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

Schedule J (Form 990) 2017 
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SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY 
CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL Schedule J (Form 990) 2017 Page 3 

Part III Supplemental Information 

Provide the information, explanation, or descriptions required for Part I, lines 1a, 1b, 3, 4a, 4b, 4c, 5a, 5b, 6a, 6b, 7, and 8, and for Part II. Also complete this part for any additional information. 

PART I, LINE 3: 

THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S PERFORMANCE IS EVALUATED TO DETERMINE IF HE IS 

MEETING THE EXPECTATIONS THAT THE BOARD HAS ESTABLISHED. THE EXECUTIVE 

COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OBTAINS ON AN ANNUAL BASIS THE SALARY STUDY PREPARED 

BY THE NY CHARTER COUNCIL AND UTILIZES THAT TO DETERMINE APPROPRIATE 

COMPENSATION FOR THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR. A SALARY LETTER IS PROVIDED TO 

THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OUTLINING COMPENSATION THAT IS SIGNED BY THE 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR.

Schedule J (Form 990) 2017 
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SCHEDULE O 
(Form 990 or 990-EZ) 

Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service 

Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ 
Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 

Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information. 
| Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ. 

| Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. 

 

2017 
Open to Public 
Inspection 

Name of the organization SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY 
CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

Employer identification number 
 

FORM 990, PART I, LINE 1, DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION MISSION: 

ACADEMIC, PERSONAL AND PROFESSIONAL SKILLS IN A SUPPORTIVE AND 

RESPONSIVE LEARNING ENVIRONMENT. SBC STUDENTS GRADUATE WITH A POSITIVE 

SENSE OF SELF, READY TO DESIGN AND REALIZE THEIR FUTURES IN COLLEGE, 

COMMUNITY AND CAREER. 

FORM 990, PART III, LINE 1, DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION MISSION: 

FUTURES IN COLLEGE, COMMUNITY AND CAREER. 

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 11B: 

SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL'S FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION 

MANAGER WILL ASSIST CONTRACTED INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS WITH PREPARING THE 

990. SBC'S EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE WILL REVIEW 

THE DRAFT. REQUESTED REVISIONS WILL BE COMMUNICATED TO SBC'S FINANCE AND 

ADMINISTRATION MANAGER. A REVISED DRAFT WILL BE REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY 

THE FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE. 

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 12C: 

ANNUALLY, EACH TRUSTEE, OFFICER AND EMPLOYEE WILL SIGN A STATEMENT WHICH 

AFFIRMS EACH PERSON HAS RECEIVED A COPY OF THE CODE OF ETHICS AND POLICY ON 

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST; HAS READ AND UNDERSTANDS THE CODE OF ETHICS AND 

POLICY; HAS AGREED TO COMPLY WITH THE CODE OF ETHICS AND POLICY; AND 

UNDERSTANDS THE SCHOOL IS CHARITABLE IN ORDER TO MAINTAIN ITS FEDERAL TAX 

EXEMPTION IT MUST ENGAGE PRIMARILY IN ACTIVITIES WHICH ACCOMPLISH ONE OR 

MORE OF ITS TAX EXEMPT PURPOSES. 

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2017) 
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Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2017) Page 2 
SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITYName of the organization Employer identification number 
CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL  

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 15: 

A COMPREHENSIVE COMPENSATION ANALYSIS COMPLETED BY THE NEW YORK CITY 

CHARTER SCHOOL CENTER WAS CONSULTED TO HELP SET COMPENSATION RATES FOR 

SCHOOL LEADERSHIP AND STAFF. 

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION C, LINE 19: 

DOCUMENTS ARE AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC UPON REQUEST CONSISTENT WITH OUR 

ADHERENCE TO SBC'S FOIL POLICY. IN ADDITION, SBC'S ANNUAL 990 WILL BE 

AVAILABLE VIA THE SCHOOL WEBSITE. 

FORM 990, PART XII, LINE 2C: 

THE FINANCE COMMITTEE ASSUMES RESPONSIBLY FOR OVERSIGHT OF THE AUDIT 

OF ITS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SELECTION OF AN INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT. 

 Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2017) 
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New York State Education Department 
Request for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools Authorized by the 

Board of Regents 

2019-20 Budget & Cash Flow Template 

General Instructions and Notes for New Application Budgets and Cash Flows Templates 

1 Complete ALL SIX columns in BLUE 
2 Enter information into the GRAY cells 

3 
Cells containing RED triangles in the upper right corner in columns B through G contain guidance on 
that particular item 

4 

School district per-pupil tuition information is located on the State Aid website at 
https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/. Rows may be inserted in the worksheet to accomodate 
additional districts if necessary. 

5 

The Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is 
self-explanatory. Where applicable, please reference the page number or section in the application 
narrative that indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enrollment would 
reference the applicable page number in Section I, C of the application narrative. 

























































































     
   

      
                        

 
 

 
 

  
   

  

 

   
     

   
    
    
    
    

  

  
    

   
  

 
   

    

      

  
    

   
   

 
     

      
    

 
  

      

  

     
 

 
   

    
   

South Bronx Community Charter High School

  5,565,452 609,597 9,317 50,000 - 6,234,366 
3,907,443 414,539 77,085 - 1,173,018 5,572,085 
1,658,009 195,058 (67,768) 50,000 (1,173,018) 662,281 

268 67 
- - -

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 
July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 

Please Note  The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 
REGULAR SPECIAL OTHER FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & TOTAL 

Total Revenue 
Total Expenses 

Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

Total Paid Student Enrollment 

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 

REVENUE 

REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 

Per Pupil Revenue 

$15,890.00 
CY Per Pupil Rate 

District of Location 

School District 2 (Enter Name) 
School District 3 (Enter Name) 
School District 4 (Enter Name) 
School District 5 (Enter Name) 

Special Education Revenue 

Grants 

Stimulus 

Other 
Other State Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES 

- - - - - -
- - - - - -

33,779 - - - - 33,779 

5,356,929 544,681 5,901,610 

5,323,150 - - - - 5,323,150 

- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - -

5,323,150 5,323,150 

- 544,681 - - - 544,681 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING 

DEA Special Needs 

Title I 
Title Funding - Other 
School Food Service (Free Lunch) 
Grants 

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation 

Other 
Other Federal Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 

- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - -

208,523 64,916 273,439 

- 64,916 - - - 64,916 

180,775 - - - - 180,775 

27,748 - - - - 27,748 

- - - - -

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE 

Contributions and Donations, Fundraising 

Erate Reimbursement 
Interest Income, Earnings on Investments, 
NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.) 
Food Service (Income from meals) 
Text Book 

Other Local Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES 

TOTAL REVENUE 

- - - 40,000 - 40,000 

- - - - - -
- - 150 - - 150 

- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - 9,167 10,000 - 19,167 

9,317 50,000 59,317 

5,565,452 609,597 9,317 50,000 6,234,366 

EXPENSES 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS No. of Positions 

Executive Management 
Instructional Management 
Deans, Directors & Coordinators 

CFO / Director of Finance 

Operation / Business Manager 

1.00 

2.00 

1.00 

-
2.00 

- - - - 145,600 145,600 

- - - - 260,944 260,944 

- - - - 117,000 117,000 

- - - - - -
- - - - 180,336 180,336 



 
  

  
  
  
 

 
 

  

 

  

 

   

   
 
   

  
    

   

 
   

  
 

    
 
  

    
     

  

 
 

     
    

  
   

  
 

   
 

 
   

 
 
 

   
   

 

Administrative Staff 3.00 - - - - 158,260 158,260 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 9 862,140 862,140 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 

Teachers - Regular - 1,369,195 - - - - 1,369,195 

Teachers - SPED - - 271,886 - - - 271,886 

Substitute Teachers - - - - - - -
Teaching Assistants - - - - - - -
Specialty Teachers - 976,879 - - - - 976,879 

Aides - - - - - - -
Therapists & Counselors - 119,995 - - - - 119,995 

Other - - - - - - -
TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 2,466,070 271,886 2,737,955 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 

Nurse 

Librarian 

Custodian 

Security 

Other 
TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 

Payroll Taxes 
Fringe / Employee Benefits 

Retirement / Pension 

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

Accounting / Audit 
Legal 
Management Company Fee 

Nurse Services 

Food Service / School Lunch 

Payroll Services 

Special Ed Services 

Titlement Services (i.e. Title I) 
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 

126,960 12,539 - - 17,242 156,741 

596,752 58,938 81,040 736,731 

34,802 3,442 - - - 38,244 

758,515 74,920 98,282 931,716 

- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -

9 2,466,070 271,886 862,140 3,600,096 

3,224,584 346,805 960,422 4,531,812 

-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

141,179 

14,267 

-
-
-

141,179 

14,267 

-
-
-

- - - - 12,872 12,872 

- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - 77,085 

77,085 

- -
168,318 

77,085 

245,403 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

Board Expenses 

Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 

Special Ed Supplies & Materials 

Textbooks / Workbooks 

Supplies & Materials other 
Equipment / Furniture 

Telephone 

Technology 

Student Testing & Assessment 
Field Trips 

Transportation (student) 
Student Services - other 
Office Expense 

Staff Development 
Staff Recruitment 
Student Recruitment / Marketing 

School Meals / Lunch 

Travel (Staff) 
Fundraising 

Other 

- - - - 5,800 5,800 

42,224 4,176 - - - 46,400 

- - - - - -
12,667 1,253 - - - 13,920 

- - - - - -
40,572 4,007 - - 5,510 50,089 

- - - - -
100,607 9,936 - - 13,663 124,206 

52,780 5,220 - - - 58,000 

53,836 5,324 - - - 59,160 

15,834 1,350 - - - 17,184 

86,031 8,509 - - - 94,540 

28,755 3,294 - - 3,905 35,954 

54,270 5,360 - - 6,050 65,680 

4,698 464 - - 550 5,712 

15,834 1,566 - - - 17,400 

3,695 365 - - - 4,060 

3,758 371 - - 4,130 

- - - - - -
4,698 464 - - 550 5,712 



  

   

     
   

  

    

  
     

 

 

        

   
    
    
    
    
 

  

  

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 520,259 51,660 36,027 607,947 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 

Insurance 

Janitorial 
Building and Land Rent / Lease 

Repairs & Maintenance 

Equipment / Furniture 

Security 

Utilities 

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 

- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - -

101,850 10,073 - - - 111,923 

- - - - - -
- - - - - -

101,850 10,073 111,923 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION 40,500 4,000 - - 5,500 50,000 

DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY 20,250 2,000 - - 2,750 25,000 

TOTAL EXPENSES 3,907,443 414,539 77,085 1,173,018 5,572,085 

NET INCOME 1,658,009 195,058 (67,768) 50,000 (1,173,018) 662,281 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

TOTAL 
ENROLLED 

268 67 335 

-
-
-
-

268 67 335 

20,767 9,098 28 

14,580 6,187 230 

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries* 

District of Location 

School District 2 (Enter Name) 
School District 3 (Enter Name) 
School District 4 (Enter Name) 
School District 5 (Enter Name) 
TOTAL ENROLLMENT 

REVENUE PER PUPIL 

EXPENSES PER PUPIL 





























 
        

         

Assumptions 
DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

List exact titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent) 

























































	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	

Entry 9 - Board Meeting Minutes 
Last updated: 08/06/2019 

Instructions for submitting minutes of the BOT monthly meetings 

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools must either provide a link to a complete set of 
minutes that are posted on the charter school website, or upload a complete set of board meeting 

minutes from July 2018 June 2019, which should match the number of meetings held during the 2018 19 

school year. 

SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

Are all monthly BOT meeting Yes 

minutes posted, which should 

match the number of meetings 

held during 2018-19 school year, 
on the charter school's website? 

A. Provide if posted on the https://www.facebook.com/pg/SBCCHS/about/? 

charter school's website a URL ref=page_internal 

link to the Monthly Board 

Meeting Minutes, which should 

match the number of meetings 

held during the 2018-19 school 
year. 

1 / 1 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	

Entry 10 Enrollment and Retention of Special 
Populations 
Last updated: 08/06/2019 

Instructions for Reporting Enrollment and Retention Strategies 

Describe the efforts the charter school has made in 2018 19 toward meeting targets to attract and retain 

enrollment of students with disabilities, English language learners/Multilingual learners, and students who 

are economically disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for meeting or making progress 

toward meeting its enrollment and retention targets in 2019 20. 

SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOLSection Heading 

Recruitment/Attraction Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Recruitment Efforts in 2018 19 Describe Recruitment Plans in 2019 20 

Econom 
ically
Disadva 
ntaged 

Because over 90% of students in CSD 7 
qualify for free and reduced price lunch, the
majority of SBC’s community engagement
within District 7 attracts adequate
representation of this population of students.
Specifically, we have conducted outreach to
area middle schools and engaged in
canvassing in the neighborhood. We host in
district open house events throughout the
winter to provide local families an
opportunity to learn more about South Bronx
Community. Our students serve as
ambassadors to their local former middle 
schools and support recruitment efforts
through information sessions at these
schools. We also participate in local high
school fairs sponsored by area middle
schools. 

SBC now has a dedicated operations
associate that will focus on recruitment 
strategies year round to maintain a diverse
student population, representative of our
district. 

English
Langua 
ge
Learner 
s/Multili
ngual
Learner 

SBC team members and staff conduct 
multilingual outreach in feeder middle
schools. The outreach includes the 
dissemination of materials in multiple
languages as well as bilingual information
sessions on different days/times. We work
with community organizations like Safe
Passage, the Unaccompanied Minors
Program at Catholic Charities, which serve
undocumented youth in the South Bronx, as 

We will staff to oversee this recruitment 
process and enlist support from parents who
may have access to communities of speakers
of languages other than English for
assistance with outreach. We have also 
attended community board meetings,
distributed bilingual materials and conducted 

1 / 3 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

s all information sessions with translation 
development
well as South Bronx United (a soccer youth

available. 
organization), BronxWorks and East Side
Settlement House. 

SBC team members and staff engage with
middle school counselors and special
education teachers in CSD 7 to explain our
support model for Students with Disabilities.
We have contacts from many area middle
schools, both district and charter, and have a Student strong record of serving students withs with disabilities which has led to strong word ofDisabilit mouth recruitment. We also engage currenties SBC families that are willing to assist us with
outreach efforts and share their experiences
attending South Bronx Community Charter
High School. Ultimately, this strategy has
been effective 
in exceeding the district target. 

SBC now has a dedicated operations
associate that will focus on recruitment 
strategies year round to maintain a diverse
student population, representative of our
district. 

Retention Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Retention Efforts in 2018 19 Describe Retention Plans in 2019 20 

SBC provides early college and workplace
learning opportunities that dramatically
increase first 

Econom 
ically
Disadva 
ntaged 

generation college going students’ exposure
to college and career rigor. This supports
both retention and transition issues by
fueling students’ aspirations. SBC focuses on
working with all of it’s students to practice
growth mindset and minimize the feelings of
frustration and hopelessness that often
culminate in students dropping out. 

As a culturally responsive school, we
acknowledge the lived realities of our
students and work to cultivate a strong
community through restorative practices. We
provide referrals to services as needed
including housing, etc. Learning Coaches,
supervised by a social worker, develop close
connections to students and their families to 
be able to connect them with local services 
as needed. Facilitating connections to after
school programs is another way of providing
support to low income students and families. 

SBC will ensure that teachers are well 
supported to work with a range of students
through meaningful professional
development and dedicated collaboration
time, we increase the likelihood that all of 
our students will stay connected through
relationships with skilled, committed, and
enthusiastic faculty and staff. Through
professional development for staff from our
in house Student Advising Youth
Development Specialist, South Bronx
Community Charter High School deepens its
focus on quality advising relationships and
supports for students, especially those
experiencing the negative and compound
stresses of poverty. 

Instructional teams will monitor each 
student’s progress using data collected from 

2 / 3 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	
	 	 	 	
	

	

	 	
	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

assessments to 

SBC teachers integrate literacy across the
curriculum drawing from the best practices

English and successful strategies of the
Langua Internationals Network for Public Schools, 
ge which has effectively supported English
Learner language learner across content areas.
s/Multili Instruction follows a tiered model with SBC 
ngual curriculum being delivered to all students,
Learner targeted supplemental interventions being
s provided to students experiencing difficulty,

and intensive interventions being extended
to students with marked learning difficulties. 

SBC’s personalized, competency based
model provides all students with
personalized learning
plans. SBC uses a rigorous Response To
Intervention (RTI) model and all students
have access to differentiated supports
including assistive technology, LearningStudent Coaches, and tutoring. In addition to theses with supports, students with disabilities willDisabilit receive services from certified specialies education teachers. SBC prioritizes trust
building with families of SWDs. We recruit
certified special education teachers and
other professionals who believe that all
students can achieve and provide specialized
instruction and accommodations to identified 
students within a full inclusion setting. 

develop and/or revise individualized learning
goals, adjust instructional groups, and
recommend 
additional interventions for students who are 
not experiencing progress. Leadership will
provide
support for staff to emphasize literacy skill
development across the curriculum and
dedicate 
instructional team meeting time to ensure
check ins with designated advisors. 

SBC’s project based approach provides both
cooperative learning and individualized 
support to
boost academic achievement for ELLs. In 
instances when there are students who 
speak the same
language and one is more proficient, they
may be paired or grouped so that we can
leverage peer
support. Consistently however, SBC bilingual
staff including Learning Coaches and ELL
Specialists
provide support to general education
teachers to employ successful ELL strategies
including home
language support and sheltered content
instruction (SIOP). 

SBC will provide support from Learning
Coaches and a Lead Teacher certified in 
Special Education ensure that SWD receive
timely and thoughtfully developed Individual
Education Plans, personalized support, and
necessary specialized services. We will
proactively consult with the Committee on
Special Education for advisement as well.
Through strong relationship building with the
CSE, SBC has been able to access crisis 
paraprofessionals and speech therapists for
students with those designated need on their
IEPs. 
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Entry 11 Classroom Teacher and Administrator 

Attrition 
Last updated: 08/06/2019 

Report changes in teacher and administrator staffing. 

Instructions for completing the Classroom Teacher and Administrator Attrition Tables 

Charter schools must complete the tables titled 2018-2019 Classroom Teacher and 

Administrator Attrition to report changes in teacher and administrator staffing 

during the 2018-2019 school year. Please provide the full time equivalent (FTE) of 

staff on June 30, 2018; the FTE for any departed staff from July 1, 2018 through June 

30, 2019; the FTE for added staff from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019; and the 

FTE of staff added in newly created positions from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 

using the tables provided. 

1. Classroom Teacher Attrition Table 

FTE Classroom FTE Classroom FTE Classroom 
Teachers on 
6/30/18 

Teachers 
Departed 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

Teachers Filling
Vacant Positions 
7/1/18  6/30/19 

13 3 3 

2. Administrator Position Attrition Table 

FTE 
Administrative 
Positions on 
6/30/18 

3 

FTE 
Administrators 
Departed 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

0 

FTE 
Administrators 
Filling Vacant
Positions 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

0 

FTE Classroom FTE of 
Teachers Added Classroom 
in New Positions Teachers on 
7/1/18 6/30/19 6/3019 

8 21 

FTE FTE 
Administrators Administrative 
Added in New Positions on 
Positions 7/1/18
6/30/19 

6/30/19 

1 4 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

		
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	

3. Tell your school's story 

Charter schools may provide additional information in this section of the Annual 
Report about their respective teacher and administrator attrition rates as some 

teacher or administrator departures do not reflect advancement or movement within 

the charter school networks. Schools may provide additional detail to reflect a 

teacher’s advancement up the ladder to a leadership position within the network or 

an administrator’s movement to lead a new network charter school. 

(No response) 

4. Charter schools must ensure that all prospective employees receive clearance 

through the NYSED Office of School Personnel Review and Accountability (OSPRA) 

prior to employment. After an employee has been cleared, schools are required to 

maintain proof of such clearance in the file of each employee. For the safety of all 
students, charter schools must take immediate steps to terminate the employment of 

individuals who have been denied clearance. Once the employees have been 

terminated, the school must terminate the request for clearance in the TEACH 

system. 

Have all employees have been cleared through the NYSED TEACH system? 

Yes 

5. For perspective or current employees whose clearance has been denied, have you 

terminated their employment and removed them from the TEACH system? 

Not Applicable 

Thank you 
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Entry 12 Uncertified Teachers 
Created: 08/06/2019 • Last updated: 08/07/2019 

Instructions for Reporting Percent of Uncertified Teachers 

The table below is reflective of the information collected through the online portal for 
compliance with New York State Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for teaching staff 
qualifications. Enter the relevant full time equivalent (FTE) count of teachers in each 

column. For example, a school with 20 full time teachers and 5 half time teachers 

would have an FTE count of 22.5. If more than one column applies to a particular 
teacher, please select one column for the FTE count. Please do not include 

paraprofessionals, such as teacher assistants. 

FTE count of uncertified teachers on 6/30/18, and each uncertified teacher should be 

counted only once. 

1. Total FTE count of uncertified teachers (6 30 19) 

2. FTE count of uncertified teachers with at least three years
of elementary, middle or secondary classroom teaching
experience (6 30 19) 

3. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are tenured or 
tenure track college faculty (6 30 19) 

4. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years of Teach
for America experience (6 30 19) 

5. FTE count of uncertified teachers with exceptional
business, professional, artistic, athletic, or military
experience (6 30 19) 

6. FTE count of uncertified teachers who do not fit into any
of the prior four categories (6 30 19) 

FTE Count of All Uncertified 

Teachers as of 6/30/19 

10 

FTE Count of All Certified 

Teachers as of 6/30/19 

10 

Thank you. 

FTE Count 

10 

6 

0 

2 

1 

1 
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